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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Principal activity and review of the business

The principal activities of EDF Energy plc and subsidianes (together the “Group” or “EDF Energy”) during
the year continued to be the provision and supply of electricity and gas to commercial, residential and
industrial customers, the provision of services relating to energy, including purchasing of fuel for power
generation, the generation of electricity and the operation of public and private distnbution networks The
Group will continue with these activities for the foreseeable future During 2009, the wider UK group
expanded through the acquisition of British Energy Group plc Although this did not have a direct impact
an the Group, EDF Energy plc purchased several companies from the British Energy Group plc group of
companies to expand its customer supply business

Results and dividends

The profit for the year, before taxation and associates, amaunted to £643 8m (2008 £239 2m) and after
taxation and contributions from associates to £437 Om (2008 £169 5m) Dividends paid during the year
amounted to £270 Om (2008 £90 Om)

EDF Energy plc and its subsidianes operate through three main business units These are “Energy
Sourcing and Customer Supply”, "Networks” and “Corporate, Shared Services & Integration” The
principal activities of these business units are

« Energy Sourcing and Customer Supply, the provision and supply of electricity and gas to
commercial, residential and industrnial customers, the provision of services retating to energy,
including purchasing of fuel for power generation and the generation of electricity,

» Networks, the operation of both public distnbution netwerks, private distribution networks and
private finance inihative “PF1” contracts, and

+ Corporate, Shared Services & Integration, the prowvision of support services including property
and IT, and an overview of the British Energy integration process

The Group will continue with these activities for the foreseeable future

A summary of the key financial results are set out In the table below and are discussed in this section
Further detail of the resuits of the segments can be found in the segmental reporting note (note 4)

Revenue Operating profit/
(loss)
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Energy Sourcing and 6,412.3 5,603 5 331.8 (102 9)
Customer Supply
Networks 1,2916 1,317 3 552 1 566 1
Other and eliminations (301.2) (284 4) {55 6) 22
Group 7,4027 6,636 4 828.3 465 4

Energy Sourcing and Customer Supply

Energy Sourcing and Customer Supply ("“ESCS”) have recorded an increase i operating profit to
£331 8m from an operating loss of £102 9m The underlying operating profit, excluding the revaluation of
derivative contracts has increased from an operating profit in 2008 of £127 5m to an operating profit of
£200 1m
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As at the end of December 2009, EDF Energy had 4 1 milion customers and 56 millon customer
accounts It suppled 18 8 TWh of electricity to 3 4 million consumer accounts and 262,000 small and
medium sized business to business accounts and 47 3 TWh of electricity to 182,000 B2B Major Business
accounts duning 2009 It also had 1 7 milllon consumer gas customer accounts and supplied 26 0 TWh of
gas to these customers in 2009

Commodity prices can be volatile whilst retall tariffs tend to follow the overall trend over the long term and
not reflect this short-term volatiity As a result, a hedging strategy that efficiently smoothes market
volatilty 1s regarded as a key competitive factor for all suppliers in the UK market An electricity price
reduction was implemented by EDF Energy on 31 March 2009, with the majority of electricity customers
seeing their prices fall by between 4 5% and 12 5% In addition, EDF Energy implemented a discount and
a gas tanff aignment on 2 October 2009

EDF Energy's strategy I1s ta be vertically integrated It has an objective ta reduce the intensity of carbon
dicxide emissions from its electricity production by 60% by 2020 In support of this, EDF Energy plans to
develop a diverse generation mix that will include nuclear, renewable and fossil fuel generation

In January 2008, work began on a new 1,300MW Combined Cycle Gas Turbine (CCGT) power station at
West Burton It 1s being bullt using advanced technology and will provide an efficient and flexible power
station that will contribute to our chmate commitment to reduce the intensity of CO2 emissions from
electricity production by 2020 CCGT power generation 1s the most energy efficient and clean method of
fossil fuel generation Itis planned that it will be fully commercially operational by mid 2011

ESCS 1s exploring investment opportunities 1n gas storage faciliies to manage the nisks of gas price
volatiity and 1s currently developing a gas storage facility alongside EOF Trading's existing Hole House
gas storage facility in Cheshire EDF Energy will continue to consider opportunities for investment n
further gas storage faciliies that can help to manage the exposure to seasconal spreads and volatility of
wholesale gas prices

Networks

The Networks business unit comprises Regulated Networks and Unregulated Networks The operating
profit declined shghtly from £566 1m to £552 1m

Regulated Networks maintain and operate public electricity networks within the London, South East and
East of England areas The networks are regulated by the Office for Gas and Electricity Markets
("OFGEM") Through the Distribution Price Control Mecharnism, OFGEM sets the tanffs that are allowed
to be charged during the period that a licence 1s granted EDF Energy's network covers over 29,000 km?
and distnbutes 87 TWh of electricity annually through 47,000 km of overhead wires and 135,000 km of
underground cables EDF Energy is the largest distributor of electricity (by volume and regulated asset
value) in the United Kingdam, distributing electricity to 8 0m customers

Each distnbution network operates under very different operating conditions with a concentrated urban
network in London and a mix of rural and urban networks in the South and East of England Regulated
networks have to ensure there 1s a sufficient amount of investment in the network to support the load
growth requirement of the customers and maintenance of the network

Capital expenditure on regulated network assets increased from £570m to £590m during the year

EDF Energy provides a wide range of commercial and technical solutions for infrastructure projects and a
number of PF| asset infrastructures and electrical distnbution networks projects inciuding the Docklands
Light Rallway Lewisham Extension and the airports of Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted

On 2 October 2009, the Group announced that it was initlating a process to evaluate ownership options
for its electricity distnibution business in the UK This 1s 1n ine with EDF S A's intention to reduce its net
financial debt by at least €5 billion by the end of 2010 The process remains ongoing at the date of
signing of the accounts
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Long-term strategy and business objectives

In March 2008, five key ambitions were set for 2012 The majonty of 2009 performance measures cover
legacy British Energy areas also

Our key ambitions were

» Safe for All - Measured through the lost time incident rate (the number of incidents with a day or
more off work per 100,000 hours worked)

» Customers' Choice - Measured through (a) preference rate of our supply customers and (b)
networks' customer satisfaction

* Sustainable Performance - Measured against our climate and social commitments {(comprising 15
measures)

+ High Performing Pecple - Measured through results of cur annual employee engagement survey

» Shareholder's Expectations - Measured through {a) earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (b} free cash flow (c) performance against our New Nuclear Build Milestones
(100 = on target)

The results for 2009 were

Ambition Measure 2009 2008

Safe for All LT! rate (per 100,000hrs) 017 029
(Soz;)ply Customer Preference Rate 83 1 82 8

Customers’ Choice Networks' Customer satisfaction 63 64 7
(%) 6

Delivery of company climate and N .
social c%mmltmgntsy(on track) 110f15 8of9
| High Performing People Employee engagement rate (%) 78 0 64 0*
New Nuclear Build Milestones (on 113 n/a
track)

Sustainable Performance

Shareholder's Expectations

*excludes legacy Briish Energy data

Nate 2008 LTI data has British Energy data included for comparability only
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Principal nisks and uncertainties

The following 1s a discussion of the key risks facing the Group together with a summary of the Group's
approach to managing those risks

Margin risk

Margin price nisk anses from the necessity to effectively forecast customer demand for gas and electricity,
and to adequately procure the various commodities at a price competitive enough to allow a favourable
tanff proposition for our customers Due to the vertically-integrated nature of the Group, the electricity
procured from the generation business provides a natural hedge for the electricity demand from the retall
business Any residual exposure to movements in the price of electricity, gas or coal 1s mitigated by
entering into contracts on the forward markets Risk management 1s monitored through sensitivity
analysis and stop loss per commodity and across commodity for the whole of EDF Energy consistently
with its Group nsks mandate

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings and deposits 1s managed principally
through the use of fixed rate debt instruments and swap agreements The Group's policy Is to use
dervatives to reduce exposure to short-term interest rates and not for speculative purposes

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk mainly relates to the currency exposure on the service of
Interest and capital on US dollar-and euro-denorminated debt, the purchase of energy and EU ermissions
certificates and other foreign currency-denominated purchases in relation to the CCGT construction The
Group's policy 1s to hedge/fix known currency exposures as they anise The US dollar and euro currency
swap agreements fix the sterling equivalent that will be requred to service the interest and capital
repayments of foreign currency debt instruments The Group enters into forward currency purchase
contracts to fix the sterling price for future foreign currency-denominated transactions

Credit risk

The Group's credit nsk 1s pnmanty atinbutable to its trade recewvables and amounts recoverable under
long-term contracts The credit nisk on hiquid funds and derivative financial instruments 1s imited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies Risk
of loss 1s monitored through estabhishment of approved counterparties and maximum counterparty imits
and mimimum credit ratings

The current economic environment increases the risk of our customers failing to pay therr debts, however
this nsk 18 mibgated because the Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk and has exposure
spread over a large number of external counterparties and customers Due to the nature of the Group's
trading with other EDF Group companies, there are large trading balances with other Group companies,
however these are not considered to be a risk because of parent company financial support

Regulatory risk

There 1s a nisk that the Networks regulated income stream will be significantly reduced because OFGEM
base ther calculaticns on nisk-free rates which are linked to government securities Rates have reduced
for other regulated industries Potentially the rate could fall to a level that 1s below EDF Group
requirements (iIncluding those associated with historical funding costs) Despite ongoing action plans to
engage and lobby the regulatory authonties, this nsk remains cntical to the profitabiity and cash flow of
the Regulated Networks business

Health and Safety risk

The health and safety of all our employees, contractors, agency staff and the public is a key risk given the
nature of the Group's business To minimise this nsk, the Group 1s committed to creating a culture that
views safe working as the only way of working and to reviewing all cur processes and procedures to
ensure they deliver this Training is provided to managers to ensure they understand ther responsibility
for the safety of the employees that they set to work In addition, a confidential helpline has been set up
for the use of anyone within the organisation to help eradicate unsafe practices and safeguard our
employees
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Directors and their interests
Drectors who held office during the year and subsequently were as follows
Daniel Camus (resigned 2 Apnil 2010)

Vincent de Rivaz
Humphrey A E Cadoux-Hudson (resigned 1 Apnl 2009)

Thomas Kusterer (appointed 1 April 2009)

Yann Laroche (resigned 2 Apnt 2010)

Gérard Menjon {resigned 2 June 2009) (deceased)
Didier Calvez (resigned 2 April 2010)

Thomas Kusterer 1s employed by and has a service contract with the Company The remaining Directors
are employed by and have service contracts with the ultimate parent company Electncité de France S A
{(“"EDF S A")

There are no contracts of signficance during or at the end of the financial year in which a Director of the
Company has a matenal interest

None of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had any interests in the shares of the
Company or any Group company that s required to be disclosed in accordance with the Companies Act
2006

There were qualifying third-party indemnity provisions in place for the benefit of one or more Drrectors of
the Company dunng the financial year and at the date of approval of the financial statements

Political and charitable contributions

During the year, the Group made various charitable contributions totalling £3,386,256 (2008 £2,798,747)
and no political contnbutions (2008 £nil)

Creditor’'s payment policy
The Group’s current policy concerning the payment of its trade creditors and other supplers i1s to

+ settie the terms of payment with those creditors/suppliers when agreeing the terms of each
transaction,

+ ensure that those creditors/suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment by inclusion of the
relevant terms In contracts, and

e pay n accordance with its contractual and other legal obligations
The payment policy applies to all payments to creditors/suppliers for revenue and capital supplies of

goods and services without exception At 31 December 2009, the Group had an average of 35 days
(2008 40 days) purchases outstanding in its trade creditors

Employee involvement

The Group keeps its employees informed on matters affecting them This 1s carmed out In a number of
ways, Including formal and informal brefings, departmental meetings and regular reports In staff
newsletters and on the Group intranet
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Equal opportunities

The Group 1s fully committed to ensuring that all current and potential future employees and customers
are treated farly and equally, regardless of therr gender, mantal status, disability, race, colour, nattonalhty
or ethmic onigin The Group provides equal opportunities for employment, training and development,
having regard to particular aptitudes and abilities In the event of employees becoming disabled during
employment, where possible, assistance and retraining 15 given so that they may attain positions
compatble with their ability

Going concern

The Group manages its capital through focusing on its net debt which compnises borrowings including
finance lease obligations and accrued interest, cash and cash equivalents {note 29) and dernvative
habilties relating to debt instruments Given that the Group 15 a 100%-owned subsidiary, any changes In
capital structure are often achieved via additional borrowings from its ultimate parent company or other
companies within the EDF S A group, although the Group has facilities avaitable for third party bond
ISSues

After making enquiries and reviewing cash flow forecasts and available facilities (note 27) for at least the
next 12 months, the Directors have formed a judgement, at the time of approving the financial statements,
that there 1s a reascnable expectation that the Group has adequate resources 1o continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future This Judgement has been formed taking into account the principal
risks and uncertainties that the Group faced and which have been outlined in more detall elsewhere In the
Directors’ report For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements

Auditors

Each of the persens who 15 a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that
1 so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's
Auditors are unaware, and

2 the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’'s Auditors are
aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the prowvisions of s418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Delaitte LLP have expressed ther willingness to continue n office as auditors and a resolution to
reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

On behalf of the Board

T —

Thomas Kusterer
Director
{8 June 2010
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the Directors are required to prepare the group financial statements in accardance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and have also chosen to prepare the parent company financial statements under IFRSs as
adopted by the EU Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of
the company for that penod In prepanng these financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1
requires that Directors

properly select and apply accounting policies,
present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information,

» provide additional disclosures when complance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity's financial position and financial performance, and

+ make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence
for taking reasonable steps far the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility statement

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

. the financial statements, prepared 1n accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards,
give a true and farr view of the assets, llabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

. the management report, which 1s incorporated into the directors’ report, includes a far review of the
development and performance of the business and the positon of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face

By order of the Board

W

Thomas Kusterer
Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY PLC

We have audited the financial statements of EDF Energy plc (the “*Company” or “parent company”) for the
year ended 31 December 2009 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Group and Company Balance Sheets, Group and Company Cash
Flow Statements, Consohdated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to
44  The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurapean Union and as applied n
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Qur
responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiing
Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit invelves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1In the financial statements
suffictent to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the group’s and the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently apphed
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation cf the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinicn

. the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group’s and the parent
company's affars as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

] the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union,

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs

as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requwements of the
Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDF ENERGY PLC continued
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you If, in our opinion
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or
+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or
+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

He

Bevan Whitehead (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Deloitte LLP, London

18 June 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 5 7,4027 6,636 4
Fuel, energy and related purchases 7 (4,892 1) (4,264 8)
Gains/(losses) on derivative commodity contracts 6 1317 (230 4)
Gross margin 26423 2,141 2
Materials and contracting costs {358 5) (369 8)
Other operating expenses {622.4) (670 2)
Personnel expenses 9 (464.3) {404 6)°
Other operating income 5.5 192
Profit before depreciation, amortisation, tax and finance costs 1,204.6 8158
Depreciation and amortisation 6 (376.3) (350 4)
Operating profit 828 3 4654
Investment revenue 5 11 558 815
Finance costs 12 {240 3) (307 7)
Profit before taxation and associates 643 8 2392
Share of {losses)proht of associate 21 {23 9) 134
Profit before taxation 6199 2526
Taxation 13 (182 9) {83 1)
Profit for the financial year 437.0 1695
Profit atinbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 38 436.8 168 0
Minority interest 33 02 15
437.0 169 5
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Profit for the financial year 437 0 169 5
Net losses on cash flow hedges 39 {181 1) (574 9)
Deferred taxation on cash flow hedges 39 506 1610
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 306 5 (244 4)
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 38 306.3 {245 9)
Minority interest 33 02 15
3065 (244 4)

X!




BALANCE SHEETS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2009

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2009

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
(restated)
Notes £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 16 1,278 9 1,260 0 06 06
Other intangible assets 18 3928 410 8 2006 2732
Property, plant and equipment 19 8,9345 8,0125 676 571
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 20 - - 2,267 6 2,3006
Interests in associate 21 208 584 - -
Investments 18 15 - -
Finance lease receivables 23 353 3 3555 - -
Other financial assets 3.5 - - -
Deferred tax asset 32 - - 142 3 1200
Denvatives and other financial instruments 30 154 4 7351 154 4 7292
11,1400 10,833 8 2,833 1 34807
Current assets
Investments - 05 - 05
Inventories 24 2635 2754 2167 2132
Trade and other recewvables 25 1,787 3 1,876 0 2,291.9 23223
Current tax recevable - 45 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 27 398 4 106 6 323 264
Finance lease receivables 23 458 381 - -
Dernvatives and other financial instruments 30 287 1 388 1 2871 3881
2,782.1 2,689 2 28280 2,9505
Total assets 13,922 1 13,523 0 5,661.1 64312
Current habilities
Other liabilities 28 {1,874 8) {1,659 0) (1,199.4) (1,020 5}
Borrowings 29 {1,246 2) {1,101 4) (1,174.1) {790 0)
Denvatives and other financial instruments 30 (573.9) (626 1) {573.9) (626 1)
Short-term provisions 31 (353.5) (351 1) {156.4) (119 8)
Obligations under finance lease 34 (18.2) {15 7) - -
Current tax hability (24.3) - {1.1) -
{4,090 9) (3,753 3) (3,104.9) (2,556 4)
Non-current liabilities
Other habilities 28 {1,908.5) (1,751 1) - -
Borrowings 29 {4,205.4) (3,895 5) (1,420 8) (2,000 2)
Dervatives and other financial instruments 30 (177 3) (608 2) {165.0) (599 5)
Long-term provisions 31 {(397) (49 8) {1.5) (3 6)
Deferred tax liability 32 (879 6) (840 1) - -
Obhgations under finance lease 34 (276 1) {286 0) - -
Post-employment benefits provision 41 (111 6) {140 0) {82 {11 8)
(7,598 2) {7,570 7) (1,5955) (2,615 1)
Total liabilities (11,689 1) (11,324 0) (4,7004) (5,171 5)
Net assets 2,233.0 21990 960.7 1,259 7
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BALANCE SHEETS continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2009

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2009

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008

Notes £m £m £m £m
Equity
Share capital 36 1,296.6 1,296 6 1,296.6 1,296 6
Share premium account 37 13.9 139 13.9 139
Capital and redemption reserves 37 202 219 129 136
Hedging reserve 39 (343 9) (213 4) {323 0) (194 0)
Retained earnings 38 1,2419 1,075 1 (397) 1296
Equity attributable to equity holders of 2,228 7 2,194 1 960.7 1,259 7
the parent
Minonty interest 33 43 49 - -
Total equity 2,2330 21990 960 7 1,259 7

The accounts on pages 11 to 79 were approved by the Board of Directors on

and were signed on 1ts behalf by

4

Thomas Kusterer
Director

t2  June 2010
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2009

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
(restated)
Notes £m £m £m £m
Net cash from/(used In) operating activities 40 1,323 8 8097 376 0 (2411)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,264 1) (1,088 3) (26.5) (27 8)
Purchase of carbon and renewable obligation
certificates (178 3} {256 2) (178.2) (256 2)
Purchase of other intangible assets {29 4) (78 3) (11.3) (2 6)
Receipts of customer contnbutions 2592 2103 - -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 259 14 4 39 17
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary - 141 - 167
Proceeds on disposal of assets under finance lease - 198 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries {53 2) - (46 8) -
Cash recepts in relation to subsidiary purchase 93 - - -
Decrease in long-term receivables 02 27 - -
Interest element of finance lease rental payments {19 8) (21 4) - -
Dividends received from investments 137 94 1800 134 0
Interest received 558 354 361 996
Increase in finance lease receivable 299 361 . -
Change in accounting policy for joint venture - 20 - -
Net cash used in investing activities (1,150 8) (1,100 0) (42.8) (35 6)
Financing activities
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent (270 0) (90 0) (270 0) (90 0)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (27 2) (17 8) - -
Proceeds from borrowings 9387 1,3310 - 13310
Repayment of borrowings (331.0} (7561) (60 2) (820 Q)
Issuance of intra-group lcans - - 798 (84 1)
Interest paid (191.7} (263 9) (76 9) {153 8)
Net cash from/{used in) financing activities 118 8 2032 (327 3) 183 1
Net increase/(decrease} In cash and cash 2918 (87 2) 59 {93 6)
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 106 6 1938 264 1200
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 27 398.4 106 6 323 26 4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Share Share Capital and Hedging Retained Minority Total
Capital Premium Redemption Reserve Earnings  Interest equity
Reserves
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2008 1,296.6 13.9 211 2005 997 1 34 25326
Profit for the year - - - - 168 0 15 1695
Other
comprehensive
{loss)income for - - - (413 9) - - (413 9)
the year
Total
comprehensive
(loss)income for
the year - - - (413 9) 168 0 15 {244 4)
Share scheme - - 08 - - - 08
Equity dividends - - - - {90 0) - {90.0)
At 1 January 2009 1,296 6 139 219 (213 4) 1,0751 49 21990
Profit for the year - - - - 436 8 02 4370
Other
comprehensive
{loss)yincome for - - - {130 5) - - (130 5)
the year
Total
comprehensive
{loss)lincome for
the year - - - (130 5) 436 8 02 3065
Share scheme - - 17 - - - (17)
Equity dividends - - - - (270 0) - (270 0)
Acquisition of
minonty interest - - - - - {0 8) (0 8)
At 31 December
2009 1,296 6 139 202 (343 9) 1,241.9 43 22330
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

Capital and  Hedging Retained Total
Premium Redemption Reserve Earnings Equity
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 2240 107 4 1,654.9
Profit for the year - 1122 1122
Other comprehensive
(loss)income for the year (418 Q) - {418.0)
Total comprehensive
{loss)income for the year {418.0) 112.2 {305.8)
Share scheme - - 06
Equity dividends - (90 0) {90 0)
At 1 January 2009 {194 0) 129 6 1,259.7
Profit for the year - 1007 100.7
Other comprehensive
(loss)/income for the year (129 0) - {129 0)
Total comprehensive
{loss)income for the year (129.0) 100.7 (28.3)
Share scheme - - {07)
Equity dividends - (270 0) {270 0)
At 31 December 2009 (323 0) (397) 960.7
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information

EDF Energy plc 1s a company incorporated in Great Britain under the Compantes Act The address of the
registered office 1s given on page 1 The nature of EDF Energy plc and its subsidianes’ (together the “Group”
or “EDF Energy”) operations and their principal activities are set out in note 4 and in the Directors’ Report on
pages 2-7

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that I1s the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in
Issue but not yet effective and therefore not adopted -

= The amendment to IFRS 1 relating to oll and gas assets and determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease

¢ The amendment to IFRS 1 relating to exemptions from Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures for First-
time Adopters

¢ The amendment to IFRS 2 amendments relating to group cash-settled share-based payment

transactions

The amendment to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations

The amendments to IFRS 5 - Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The amendments to IFRS 8 - Operating Segments

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement

The amendments to IAS 1 anising from April 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRS

The amendments to 1AS 7 arising from Apnl 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRS

The amendments to |AS 17 anising from April 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRS

The amendments to tAS 24 relating to the definition of related party

The amendment to IAS 27 relating to amendments ansing under IFRS 3

The amendment to IAS 32 relating to the classification of rights 1ssues

The amendment to IAS 36 ansing from April 2002 Annual Improvements to IFRS

The amendment to IAS 38 arising from April 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRS

The amendment to IAS 39 in relation to eligible hedged ems and the amendments ansing from April

2009 Annual Improvements to IFRS

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 18 Transfer of assets from customers

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

® & & & & & & 0 & B & 0

The Directors antictpate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods (with the
exception of IFRIC18) will have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group, except to
provide some additional disclosure Due to the nature of the Group’s activiies, IFRIC18 s likely to have a
significant impact on the Group's results It 1s expected to result in a reduction of fixed assets, and a
corresponding reduction of deferred income of £1,687 4m at 1 January 2010

Change in accounting treatment for borrowing costs

Durning the year, the Group was required to change its accounting treatment for the capitalisation of
borrowing costs to reflect the amendments of IAS 23 The updated standard makes it mandatory to capitalise
barrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset whereas previously all borrowing costs were expensed in the penod which they were incurred The
change in accounting standard has been applied, prospectively from 1 January 2009, and therefore there
has been no restatement in relation to the 2008 figures
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

In the current year the Group has adopted all applicable IFRS and interpretations which have been endorsed
by the EU (IFRS) and which are relevant to its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on
1 January 2009 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for denvative financial instruments that have been measured at fair value

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities Al
intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits anisig from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated on consolidation The carrying value of subsidianies includes the equity investments and long-
term loans to subsidianes

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are 1dentified separately from the Group's
equity therein Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the onginal business
combination and the minonty's share of changes in equity since the date of the combination Losses
applicable to the minonty In excess of the minonty's interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and 1s able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses

No income statement is presented for EDF Energy plc {the Company) in accordance with the exemptions
allowed by the Compantes Act 2006 The profit dealt with 1in the Company for the year ended 31 December
2009 was £100 7m before dividends paid (2008 £112 2m)

Business combinations

The Group accounts for purchases of subsidiaries using the purchase method The cost I1Is measured as the
total fair value on the date of acquisition of assets, hiabilities and equity instruments given as consideration,
plus any costs directly incurred in the purchase The assets and liabilities acquired are measured at farr
value on the date of acquisition, except for assets and llabibties that are classified as held for sale or in a
disposal group in accordance with IFRS 5 Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,
which are measured at fair value less costs of disposal

Any minority interest in the acquired entity 1s inttially measured at the minonty proportion of the farr value of
assets and habilities recognised

Goodwill arising on acquisition 1s recognised as an asset and inihally measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the business combination aver the Group'’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilties and contingent habiities If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’'s 1dentifiable assets, habiites and contingent habiliies exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess Is recognised immediately in the income statement

The interest of minonty shareholders in the acquiree 15 iImhally measured at the minority's proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, labilities and contingent habilities recogrused

Investments in associates

An associate 1s an entity over which the Group 1s I1n a position to exercise significant influence, but not
control or joint control, through participation in the financial and operating policy dectstons of the investee
Significant influence 1s the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decistons of the investee
but s not control or joint control over those policies
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2. Significant accounting policies continued

Investments in associates continued

The results and assets and habilities of associates are incorporated In these financial statements using the
equity method of accounting Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost plus post-
acguisihion changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate less any imparment in the value of
individual investments Losses of the assocrates in excess of the Group's interest in those associates are not
recogmsed

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the fair values of the identfiable net assets,
of the associate at the date of acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill netted against the investment Any
deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the Group’s share of the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the associate at the date of acquisition {1 e discount on acquisition) 1s credited in the income statement in the
period of acquisition

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate Losses may provide evidence of an imparment of the
asset transferred in which case appropriate provision 1s made for impaiwrment

Interest in joint ventures

The Group’s interests in its Joint ventures are accounted for by proportionate consolidation, which involves
recognising a proportionate share of the joint venture’s assets, liablities, income and expenses with similar
items in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line basis

Where the Group transacts with its jointly-controlted entities, unrealised profits and losses are elminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint venture

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest In
the far value of the identifiable assets and habilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at
the date of acquisition Goodwill 1s intially recognised as an asset at cost and 1s subsequently measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill 15 reviewed for imparment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impared For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated
to each of the Group's cash generating units and these are tested for impairment annually or more frequentiy
when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
untt 1s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the iImpairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit Any imparment loss Is recognised immediately in the income
statement and 15 not reversed in a subsequent period

Foreilgn currency translation

The functional and presentation currency of EDF Energy plc 18 pounds sterling Transactions in foreign
currency are inttially recorded in the functional currency rate at the rate on the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date All differences are taken to the income staterment

In order to hedge Its exposure tc certain foreign exchange nsks, the Group enters into forward contracts to

mitigate the nsks {see below for details of the Group's accounting policies In respect of such dertvative
financial instruments)
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 20098

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2 Significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured Revenue includes amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes

Energy Supply Revenue s recognised on the basis of electricity and gas supplied dunng the period and 1s
attributable to the supply of electricity and gas and meter reading and related services This includes an
estimate of the sales value of units and therms supplied to customers between the date of the last meter
reading and the year end, and the invoice value of other goods sold and services provided Any unbilled
revenue I1s Included in trade recewvables, net of provision, to the extent that it 1s considered recoverable,
based on historical data

Distribution Revenue relating to Distribution Use of System (DU0S) charges is attributable to the continuing
activity of electricity distnbution This includes an estimate of the sales value of units supphed to customers
between the date of the last meter reading and the year end The fees paid by customers upon connection to
the network (connection fees) are recorded as deferred income and transferred to sales over a period that
depends on the useful life of the assets they contribute to

Long-term contracts Revenue from long-term contracts 1s recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy on construction contracts (see below)

Interest income |nterest iIncome 1s recognised as the interest accrues {using the effective interest method
that 1s the rate that exaclly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecration and any imparment in value
Borrowing costs incurred relating to the construction or purchase of fixed assets are capitalised as below
Depreciation 1s calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset and charged to
income as follows

Generation assets - Up te 20 years
Overhaul of generation assets - 4 years
Overhead and underground lines - 45 to 60 years
Network plant and buildings - 20 to 60 years
Freehold land - Not depreciated
Other buildings
-freehold - Up to 40 years
-leasehold - Lower of lease penod or 40 years
Vehicles and mobrle plant —- 5to 10 years
Fixtures and equipment - 3 to 8 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful hives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease

Contributions received from third parties towards distnibution network assets, which include capital grants,
are credited to the balance sheet as deferred income on receipt and amortised to the income statement over
the lives of the distribution network assets to which they relate

Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss Depreciation of

these assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2. Significant accounting policies continued

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if therr carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than continuing use This condition 1s regarded as met only when
the sale 1s highly probable and the asset or disposal group 15 avalable for immediate sale in ts present
condition The Group must be committed to the sale which should be expected 1o qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification

Inventones

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes all costs incurred In
bringing each product to its present location and condition The cost of raw maternals, consumables and
goods for resale 1s calculated using the weighted average cost basis Work-in-progress and finished goods
are valued using the cost of direct matenals and labour plus attnibutable overheads based on a normal level
of activity Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be
incurred in completion and disposal

Provisions are made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropnate

Borrowing costs

Prior to 1 January 2009, the Group’s accounting policy was to expense all borrowing costs in the periods In
which they are incurred From 1 January 2009, borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets are added to the cost of those assets untl such ttme that the
assets are substantially ready for thew intended use Qualfying assets are assets which take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale

In instances where the Group borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a quabfying asset, the
borrowing costs incurred are the borrowing costs that are capitalised In instances where an entity borrows
funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, a capitalisation rate 1s applied
based on the weighted average of general borrowings dunng the period

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the penod in which they are incurred

EU Emissions trading scheme and renewable obligations certificates

The Group recognises Its free emissions allowances received under the National Allocation Plan at nil cost
Purchased emissions allowances are inthially recognised at cost (purchase price) within intangible assets A
hability 1s recognised when the level of emissions exceeds the level of allowances granted The lability 1s
measured at the cost of purchased allowances up to the level of purchased altowances held, and then at the
market price of allowances ruling at the balance sheet date Movements are recognised within operating
profit Forward contracts for the purchase or sale of emissions allowances are measured at far value with
gans and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised i the income statement

The Group 15 obliged to sell a specific ratio of electricity sales volume 1o its customers, from renewable
sources This I1s achieved via generation from renewable scurces or the through purchase of renewable
obligation certificates ("ROCs") Any purchased certificates are recognised at cost and included within
intangible assets Any ROCs obtained directly through renewable generation are carned at nil cost but
reduce the Group's outstanding obligations to supply certificates The Group recognises a provision for its
cbligation to supply certificates, based on the energy it supplies to customers The intangible assets are
surrendered, and the provision s released at the end of the compliance period reflecting the consumption of
economic benefit As a result no amortisation is recorded during the penod
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EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2. Significant accounting policies continued

IT Software

IT software 15 inttially recognised at cost and 1s amortised over on a straight-ine basis over a useful
economic fe of 3-8 years

Long-term contracts

Where the outcome of a long-term contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date This 1s normally
recogmised by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated
total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion Vanations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agreed with the
customer

Where the outcome of a long-term contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue 1s recognised to
the extent of contract costs incurred that it 1s probable will be recoverable Contract costs are recognised as
expenses In the period in which they are incurred When it 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss 1s recognised as an expense immediately

Provisions

Provisions are recogrnised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation If the effect of the time
value of money 1s materal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability

Arrangements containing a lease

In compliance with interpretation IFRIC 4, the Group identifies agreements which do not have the legal form
of a lease but which convey the nght to use an asset or group of specific assets to the purchaser The
purchaser in such arrangements benefits from a substantial share of the asset's production, and payment I1s
not dependent on production or market price

Such arrangements are treated as leases, and analysed with reference to IAS 17 for classification as either
operating or finance leases

Leases

Leases are classifled as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases Rentals payable
under operating leases are charged in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term
Assets held under finance leases are recogmised as assets of the Group at their farr value or, if lower, the
present value of the mimimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease The
corresponding hability to the lessor 1s included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability, with charges being recogrised directly in
the income statement

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minmum lease payments s
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the
receivable 18 recogrused as unearned finance iIncome Lease income Is recogrused over the term of the
lease, on a straight-ine basis, using the net investment method, which recognises a constant periodic rate of
return When assets are leased out under an operating lease, assets are carried on the balance sheet based
on the nature of the asset
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31 DECEMBER 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2 Significant accounting policies continued

Taxation

The income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 15 based on faxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's
hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred income tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and habilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax
habilties are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avalable against which deductible
temporary differences can be utlised Such assets and labihties are not recogmised if the temporary
differences arise from goodwill or from the inttial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and llabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets I1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered

Deferred tax i1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability 15 settled
or the asset realised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax i1s also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax
assets against current tax habilites and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes The cost of providing benefits 1s determined using the
projected unit credit method with actuanal valuations being carnied out at each balance sheet date Actuanal
gasns and losses are recognised using the 10% corndor method An income or expense Is recognised when
the net cumulative unrecognised actuanal gains or losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous
reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation or the fair value of plan assets at
that date These gains or losses are recognised over the expected average remaining working lives of the
employees partticipating in the plans Past service cost 1s recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise s amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested

The retirement benefit obhigation recognised on the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuanal gains and losses and unrecognised past
service cost, and as reduced by the far value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation is
hmited to unrecognised actuanal losses and past service cost, plus the present value of avallable refunds
and reductions in future contributions to the plan
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2 Significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and habilihes are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments
Trade recetvables

Trade recervables are inhally measured at onginal invoice amount and are subsequently measured at far
value An allowance Is recognised In the income statement for irecoverable amounts when there (s evidence
that the asset 1s iImpaired The allowance is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and
the expected future cash flows from the asset

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and other short-term hquid investments which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value

Financial rabiitties and equity

Financial habilities are classified according to the nature of the contractual obligations, and are based on the
definition of lability An equity instrument 1s a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group

Interest-bearnng loans and borrowings

Interest-beaning bank loans and overdrafts are inttially measured at proceeds receved, net of direct issue
costs Foreign currency denominated bank loans and overdrafts are restated at closing exchange rates with
any movements going through the income statement unless it 1s designated as a cash flow hedge Any
differences between the proceeds and the settlement/redemption of the borrowings are measured on an
accrual basis and recognised over the life of the instrument

Trade payables
Trade payables are measured at farr value
Derivatives and other financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose it to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity
prices mncluding sale and purchase prices of gas, coal and electricity

The Group uses dernvatives and other financial instruments to hedge #s nsks associated with price
fluctuations relating to forecasted transactions and contractual obligations Foreign currency nisk arises from
bonds which are denominated In foreign currencies and from foreign currency-dentominated commodity
purchases such as coal and carbon The Group's policy 1s to hedgeffix known currency exposures through
currency swap and forward agreements that fix the Sterling equivalent that will be required to service the
contractual obligation

Commodity price nsk anses from the forward purchases and forward sales of gas, coal, electricity and
carbon When commodity contracis have been entered into as part of the Group’s normal business activity,
the Group seeks to classify them as “own use” contracts and outside the scope of IAS 39 This 1s achieved
when

a physical delivery takes place under all such contracts,

s the volumes purchased or sold under the contracts correspond to the Group's operating
requirements, and

» the contracts are not considered as wnitten options as defined by the standard

Commodity contracts not qualifying as ‘own use’ which also meet the definiion of a derivative are within the
scope of IAS 39 This includes both financial and non-financial contracts
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2 Significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments continued

The use of denvahves and other financial instruments 1s governed by the Group's policies, approved by the
Senior Leadership Team The Group does not use derivatives and other financial instruments for speculative
purposes

Derwvatives and other financial instruments are measured at far vatue on the contract date and are re-
measured to far value at subsequent reporting dates Changes In the far value of derivatives and other
financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as
they anse Changes in the far values of dervative financial instruments that are designated as hedges of
future cash flows are recognised directly in equity with any ineffective element being recogrised immediately
i the iIncome statement

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certan hedging mstruments, which include derivatives, embedded dernvatives and
non-derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges

At inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the refationship between the hedging instrument
and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge, and on an on-going basis, the Group documents
whether the hedging instrument 1s highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the
hedged item

Due to the vertically integrated nature of the Group, the electricity demand from the retail business provides
a natural hedge for the electricity procured from the generation business Any residual exposure to
movements 1n the price of electricity, gas or coal 1s mitigated by entering into contracts and hedging options
on the forward markets Risk of loss 1s mitigated through establishment of approved counterparties and
maximum counterparty imits and mimimum credit ratings

Gains and losses on any contracts which have not been designated as cash flow hedges are
credited/charged to the income statement in the period in which they anse

The Group classifies hedges Iin the following categories
Fair value hedges

Changes in the farr value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as far value hedges are recorded In
profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that 1s
atiributable to the hedged nsk The change in the far value of the hedging instrument and the change in the
hedged item attributable to the hedged nsk are recogrised in the line of the income statement relating to the
hedged item

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedge instrument
expires or Is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting The adjustment to the
carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged nisk 1s amortised to profit or loss from that date
Cash flow hedges

Gains and losses on gas, electricity and coa! contracts designated as cash flow hedges are deferred and
recognised m the income statement when the hedged transaction occurs

The effective portion of changes n the farr value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow

hedges are deferred in equity The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion I1s recognised immediately in
profit or loss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
2. Significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments continued

Amounts deferred 1n equity are recycled in profit or loss In the periods when the hedged item 1s recognised in
profit or loss, In the same line of the iIncome statement as the recognised hedged tem However when the
hedged forecast transaction results in the recognmition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial hability, the
gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the imitial
measurement of the cost of the asset or liability

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that time, any
cumulative gain or loss deferred 1h equity at that time remains in equity and 1s recognised when the forecast
transaction 1s ultimately recogrmised in profit or loss When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity 1s recognised immediately m profit or loss

Embedded denvatives

Denvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their risks and characternstics are not closely related to those of the host contract, and the
host contract 1s not carned at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss

Share-based payments

EDF Energy plc's ultimate parent company, EDF S A, 1s listed on Euronext, the French stock exchange Any
share-based payments to employees are measured at fair value at the date the shares are 1ssued The far
value 1s measured using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account any preferential terms offered to staff
such as discounts and free shares Any share-based payments to employees which are equity settled are
valued at market value on the date of announcement Any contribution to the scheme 1s charged to the
income statement in the penod in which it anises, at the farr value determined, and apportioned in a straight-
ine basis over the vesting period A corresponding amount 1s recognised as a capital contribution from EDF
S A within equity Any repayment required to EDF S A 1s measured at the market value of the period end and
recagnised as a hability and reduced capita! contribution

3 Cntcal accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, some cnitical accounting judgements have been
applied by management and some balances are based on estimates

Revenue racognition

Revenue includes an estmate of the sales value of units supplied to customers between the date of the last
meter reading and the year end This I1s calculated by reference to data received through the settlement
systems together with estimates of consumption not yet processed through settlements and selling price
estimates These estimates are sensitive to the assumphons used in determining the portion of sales not
billed at the reporting date

Revenue 1s valued at average pence per unit, and any unbilled revenue Is treated as an unbilled debtor
Management adjusts this figure based on a judgement of the likelihood of collecting the outstanding debt
based on tustorical data

industry reconcifratton process — fuel and energy purchases

The cost of electricity and gas purchases 1s reported in line with the latest settlement data provided by the
industry system operators, which itself includes an inherent degree of estimation, depending on the matunty
of those data These industry processes allocate purchase volumes, and associated settlement costs,
between suppliers based on a combination of estimated and metered customer consumption Over time, as
more actual reads become avallable and replace previous consumption estimates, so the allocation of
volumes and costs between suppliers 1s updated through the industry reconcihation process, and becomes
continually more accurate as a result
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3 Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Provisions

Provisions for hlabiities are made where a hability exists but 1s uncertain in respect of amount or when the
habiity will fali due Provisions are made against bad and doubtful debts, unbilled revenue as well as
obsolete stock Provision against debtors 1s estimated based on applying a percentage provision rate to the
aged debt book at the end of each period The provision rates are based on the comparnison of historical
rates of collection compared to billing data Any over-statement or under-statement of the provision 1s
essentially a iming difference to the actual write-off level Provision 1s made against stock taking account of
the age of the asset, using predefined formulae derived from actual experience

Decommussioning provisions

The Group has provided for decommissioning its three power stations These provisions are based on the
experience of other companies within the EDF Group, adjusted for specific 1ssues associated with each
power station and are discounted Expected future costs of decommissioning are monitored to ensure that
the provisiocn remains at an adequate level Further information about decommissioning provisions can be
found In note 31

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The pension deficit s calculated by independent qualified actuaries, based on actual payrol! data and certain
actuanal assumptions These actuanal assumptions are made to model potential future costs and benefits
and include, Iife expectancy, rates of returns on plan assets, inflation, discount rate and expected retirement
age These assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis and may change based on current market data
Changes in assumptions could lead to additional actuanal gains and losses being recogmsed Further
information 1s avallable about pensions in note 41

Goodwill impatrment

The impairment review for goodwill 1s based on the Group's medium-term plans and assumptions concerning
discount rates Further detail on the assumptions used in the calculation can be found In note 17

Fair value of energy derivalives

The valuations of these dernivatives are estimates based, where avallable, on published forward price curves
Where published information 1s not available, valuation techniques have been used to determine fair values

The Group estimates farr values for the commodity contracts using tradable contract prices quoted on the
active market and using valuation techniques reflecting market views These are then discounted using the
published LIBOR curve for the time value of money and adjusted for counterparty credit nsk

The Group considers that the UK market for commodity contracts including gas and electricity 1s active for up
to two to three years forward, with rehable broker quotes and published prices avallable, therefore in this
active penod commodity contracts are valued at forward market prices as at 31 December Qutside the
active period where lquidity in the market 15 low due to the availlable range of contract quotes limited to
seasonal contracts, a number of interpolation/extrapolation methods are used based on market expectations

The counterparty credit risk arnising through the Group's energy trading activities 1s measured, monitored,
mitigated and reported in accordance with the Group’s credit nisk policy The policy sets out the framework
that dictates the maximum credit exposure that the Group can incur to each of its energy trading
counterparties based on therr public credit rating {or where a counterparty 1s not public rated, a rating
calculated using an in-house scoring model) The Group uses a varety of tools to mitigate its credit
exposure, for example, requesting parent company guarantees, letters of credit or cash collateral, agreeing
sutable payment terms and netting provisions The majonty of energy trading exposure 1s held against
investment grade counterparties
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

The mamn market-based drivers are prices of power, gas and EU emissions trading allowances, which are
derived from current future pnices and from a long-term forecast

Farr values for foreign exchange dervatives and for interest rate denvatives have been determined with
reference to closing market prices at 31 December The Group has designated certain foreign exchange
derivatives as fair value hedges In each case, the nsk being hedged 1s foreign exchange nisk

The Group has designated certain power, gas and coal derivatives as cash flow hedges of forecast
transactions In each case the nsk being hedged 1s commodity price risk

Financial lease arrangemernts

The Group accounts for some long-term contracts as financial lease arrangements In order to evaluate
these arrangements, detailled financial models have been drawn up, which include specific assumptions
regarding margins on construction, operating costs and maintenance expenditure, as well as forecast capital
expenditure, interest rates and inflation rates Any changes in these assumptions would impact upon the
profit recognition, which i1s based on the lease models

4 Segment information

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 Operating Segments with effect from 1 January 2009 IFRS 8 requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports which are reviewed by the Chief
Operating decision-maker, considered to be the Senior Leadership Team WNo change to reportable
segments was identified as a result of the adoption of this standard The operating businesses are organised
and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets

Networks business unit Transfer of electrncity from where 1t 1s received in bulk, across the distribution
systems and its delivery to consumers It 1s also responsible for the operation, maintenance and expansion
of private electrical distribution systems

Energy Sourcing and Customer Supply business unit includes the generation, purchase and supply of
electricity to customers and purchase and supply of gas to customers

Other This pnmarily includes the provision of services to the Group, e g facilities, property and insurance
and the effect of eliminating inter-segment transactions

Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties

The Group's geographical segmentation i1s determined by the location of the Group’s assets and operations

All revenue transactions take place in the United Kingdom Also all assets and habilities are entirely in the
United Kingdom and hence no separate tables have been disclosed for the geographical segment
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4 Segment information continued

Group segmental analysis 31 December 2009:

Revenue
Sales to external customers
Inter-segment sales

Segment revenue

Result
Operating profit/{loss)

Investment revenue
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Share of losses of associates
Taxation

Profit for the year from operations

Inter segment sales are made at pravailing market prices

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

Energy

Sourcing

and
Customer Total

Networks Supply Other Operations

£m £m £m £m

1,000 3 6,386 8 156  7,4027
2913 255 (316 8) .

1,201 8 64123 (301 2) 71,4027

552 1 3318  (556) 828 3
55.8
(240.3)

643 8
(23 9)
(182 9)

4370

Assets and habilities

Segment assets
interests 1n associates

Total assets

Segment habilities
Unallocated labiities

Total habilities

Other segment information
Capital expenditure
Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Depreciation
Amortisation

79515 3,358 4 25914 13,9013
- 208

7,951 5 3,379 2 25914 13,9221

5,064 0 3,497 4 2,248 1 10,8095
- - 8796

5,064 0 34974 2,2481 11,689 1

(837 3) (6433)  (322) (1,512 8)

(2250) (108 9) (14 2) (348 1)
(0 1) (24 9) (32) (28 2)
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4 Segment information continued

Group segmental analysis 31 December 2008.

Revenue
Sales {o external customers
Inter-segment sales

Segment revenue

Result

Operating profit/(loss)
Investment revenue
Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Share of profits of associates
Taxation

Profit for the year from operations

Inter segment sales are made at prevailing market prices

EDF ENERGY PLC
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Energy

Sourcing

and
Customer Total
Networks Supply Other Operations
£m £m £m £m

1,038 6 5,581 4 164 6,636 4
278 7 221 (300 8) .

1,317 3 56035 (2844) 6,636.4

566 1 (102 9) 22 465.4
815
(307 7)

2392
13.4
(83 1)

1695

Assets and liabilities

Segment assets
Interests in associates

Total assets

Segment habilities
Unallocated habilties

Total habilities

Other segment information
Capital expenditure
Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Depreciation
Amortisation

6,937 5 34388 3,088 3 13,464 6
- 584 - 584

6,937 5 34972 3,0883 13,5230

(4,207 5)  (3,7239) (2,4625) (10,483 9)
: ] (840 1) (840 1)

(42975) (37239) (3,3026) (11,324 0)

(777 5) (3707)  (204)  (1,168.6)

(211 1) (99 7) (127 (323.5)
(01 (22 8) (4 0) (26.9)
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5 Revenue

An analysis of the Group's revenue Is as follows

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

Year ended Year ended

2009 2008

£m £m

Sales of goods and services 7,318 0 6,566 7
Revenue from long-term contracts (note 26) 714 589
Property rental income 60 53
Other revenue 73 55
7,4027 6,636 4

Investment revenue (note 11) 55.8 815
Total revenue 7,458 5 6,717 9

Sales of goods and services include some element of uncertainty as a result of estimates in the calculation
The estimates used can be validated after year-end, as updated information 1s recewved through the
settlement process Such process takes up to 14 months post year-end The effect of this in 2009 for items
relating to earlier periods was to reduce reported revenue n the year by approximately £4 4m (2008

£20 0m)

Revenue excludes the gamns arising on far value of contracts under I1AS 39

6 Profit for the year

Operating profit for the year has been arnved at after 2009 2008
charging/(crediting) the following gains and losses £m £m
Research and development costs 9.7 63
Staff costs (note 9) 464.3 404 6
Auditors' remuneration for audit services (see below) 1.2 11
Auditors' remuneration for non-audit services (see below) 0.8 o8
Cost of Inventories recognised as expense 648 8 729 5
(Gains)/losses on dervative commodity contracts (131.7) 2304
Fair valuation of derivative foreign exchange contracts 64 (10 1)
Operating lease rentals 346 40 3
Other cperating income from disposal of non-current assets (5.5) (19 2)
Movement in bad debt provision (note 25) 379 369
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables 101 2 58 4
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on frade receivables (13.6) (89)
Provision for impairment of financial assets and habilities relating to

Metronet - (11 0)
Provision for future costs associated with Metronet - (15 6}
Profit before taxation for the year has been arrived at after

charging/{crediting) the above items in operating profit and the 2009 2008
following gains and losses £m £m
Net foreign exchange gains (10 2) (52)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 19) 348 1 3235
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 18) 282 269
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6. Profit for the year continued

The analysis of Auditors’ remuneration 1s as follows

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company's

and Group accounts

For the audit of the Company's subsigiaries pursuant to legislation

Total audit fees

Nen-statutory interim review

Tax services

Services relating to corporate finance
Other assurance services

Total non-audit fees

Total fees

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

2009 2008
£m £m
03 03
09 08
12 11
01 01
0.1 -
- 01
06 06
0.8 08
2.0 19

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to
be disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a

consolidated basis

7. Fuel, energy and related purchases

2009 2008
£m £m
Purchase of energy 3,5213 3,262 5
Distribution and transmission 8201 696 1
Carbon certficates 276 0 176 1
Renewable obligations 304.1 161 6
Release of onerous contracts and other provisions {29.4) {31 5)
Total fuel, energy and related purchases 4,892 1 4,264 8
8 Directors’ emoluments

2009 2008
£m £m
Emoluments 16 15
2009 2008
Number Number
Members of defined benefit pension scheme 1 1
2009 2008
£m £m

Emoluments payable to the highest paid director were as follows
Aggregate emoluments 10 09
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9. Staff costs
Staff costs arising In the year, including Directors’ emoluments were as follows

2009 2008

GROUP £m Em
Wages and salaries 479.5 448 6
Social secunty costs 42,9 396
Pension costs {note 41) 353 248
Cost of granting shares to employees 40 89
Severance 34,1 39
Less capitalised costs (131.5) (121 2)
464.3 404 6

Capitahsed staff costs mainly relate to the cost of employing staff for the purposes of extending the network
This includes managenal and technical staff to the extent that they are directly attnbutable to the

improvement of the network These costs have been included within network assets

The monthly average number of employees, including Directors, during the year was as follows

2009 2008

Number Number

Networks business unit 5,012 4,843
Energy Sourcing and Customer Supply business unit 7,833 7,423
Corporate, Shared Service, Integration and Steering functions 1,170 1,125
Nuclear New Build business unit 43 -
14,058 13,391

The costs of the employees in the Nuclear New build business unit are recharged across to another group

company
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10 Employee share offering

ACT 2007 scheme

On 30 August 2007 the ultimate parent company, EDF S A announced Actions pour Tous (ACT) 2007, the
Free Award Share Plan This plan entitles all persons who, on 30 August 2007, were bound by an
employment contract with EDF Energy or one of its subsidiaries, to a free distribution of EDF S A ordinary
shares In accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the plan Each beneficiary was notfied of the
number of shares, the vesting and holding penods applicable to them and had night of refusal of the plan

Each employee who agreed to take part in the plan was guaranteed to recewve 1C free shares plus an
additional number of shares proportional to therr salary, calculated on the basis of the actual June 2007
annual salary The award of shares was dependent on the employee remamning in continuous employment
within the Group for two years, and also reled on the EDF S A group achieving certain financial targets

The table below shows the movemaents relating to the share scheme durnng the year

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m Em
At 1 January 0.8 (0 5) 0.6 (¢ 1)
Share based payment expense 38 55 0.7 10
Increase n future liability (5 5) (42) {1.4) (0 3)
At 31 December (included within capital
reserves) (0 9) 08 (0.1) 06

The value of the shares granted during the period represents the charge in the income statement This Is
accounted for at the share price {base price) on date of announcement of the plan being €72 50 or £48 99
Durning 20089, the Group paid £11 8m to EDF S A in exchange for 226,677 shares given to Group employees
The amount remaming in capital reserves represents the difference between the cost of the shares and the
charge recognised in the Income statement

11 Investment revenue

2009 2008

£m £m

Interest on bank deposits 5.9 260
Income from investments 1.6 14
Finance income recelvable under finance leases 35.4 360
Other finance income 2.7 31
Gain on foreign currency dervatives - 10 1
Foreign exchange translation gains 102 52
Total investment revenue 558 815
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12 Finance costs

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

2009 2008

£m £m

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 113 14 9
Interest on bonds 177.4 146 9
interest on other loans 45 1056
Finance charges payable under finance leases 198 214
Unwinding of discount on provisions {note 31) 16.1 14 9
Loss on foreign currency derivatives 6.4 -
Pension scheme interest {note 41) 28.0 40
Total finance cost 2635 3077
Less amounts included in the cost of qualfying assets (23.2) -
Total borrowing costs 240.3 3077

The capitahisation of borrowing costs has been appled prospectively after a change in accounting policy on 1

January 2009
13 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

(a) Analysis of tax charge In the year

Current tax 2009 2008
£m £m
UK carporation tax 101 2 934
Adjustments in respect of previous years {11.1) (26 9)
Total current tax expense 90 1 66 5
Deferred tax 2009 2008
£m £m
Current year 88.2 (24 5)
Adjustment in respect of previous years 4.8 411
Total deferred tax charge (note 32) 928 166
Income tax expense reported in Income statement (note 13(b)) 182 9 831
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13. Tax on profit on ordinary activities continued

(b} The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows

2009 2008
£m £m
Profit before tax and associates 643.8 2392
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 28 0% (2008 28 5%) 180 3 68 2
Effect of
Non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income 91 03
Adjustment to prior-year corperation tax charge (11.1) (26 9)
Adjustment to prior-year deferred tax charge 46 411
Current year effect of deferred tax rate change - 04
Income tax expense reported In iIncome statement 1829 831

The effective rate of tax before special items and re-measurerments including share of associates' tax for the
year ended 31 December 2009 was 28 4% (2008 34 7%)

In the current year a deferred tax credit of £50 6m (2008 credit of £161 Om) has been recognised In equity

which relates to losses arising on derivative instruments which have been included as cash flow hedges
under IAS 39
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14 Acquisition of subsidiaries

Dunng the year, the Group completed the acquisition of three companies, Cheshire Cavity Storage Group
Limited, British Energy Direct Limited and District Energy Limited  They have been accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting The purchase method of accounting was considered appropriate for the
acquisition of British Energy Direct Limited and District Energy Limited from another Group company A fair
valuation exercise was performed to ensure an arms length transaction

On 15 July 2008, the Group purchased 100% of the share capital and voting nghts of Cheshire Cavity
Storage Limited This company leases salt cavities with the view to potentially develop gas storage locations
Turnover and net profit for 2009 was £nil The goodwill ansing on acquisition relates to the potential value of
the site for gas storage development

On 30 June 2008, the Group purchased 100% of the share capital and voting nghts of Briish Energy Direct
Limited, from another group company If acquired at 1 January 2009, this company would have contributed
£1,048 Om to turnover and £18 2m to net Income On 31 October 2009, the Group purchased 100% of the
share capital and voting rnights of District Energy Limited, from another group company If acquired at 1
January 2009, this company would have contributed £4 5m to turnover and £2 3m to net iIncome Both British
Energy Direct Limited and District Energy Limited are in the business of selling electncity to end customers

Overall, these companies contributed a profit of £2 4m to net iIncome in 2009

The farr value of assets and habilihes acquired 1s as below -

Cheshire
Cavity British
Storage Energy District
Group Direct Energy

Limited Limited Limited Total

£m £m £m £m

intangible assets 388 233 - 621
Financial assets - - 35 35
Deferred taxation (note 32) - 121 15 136
Inventory - 14 - 14
Trade receivables - 8670 63 8733
Total assets 388 903 8 113 9539
Other habilities - (870 3) (0 5) (870 8)
Deferred taxation (note 32) (10 9) - - {10 9)

Provisions for onerous lease contracts {note

31) - {40 8) - (40 8)
Total habilities (10 9) (911 1) (05) {922.5)
Farr value of company 279 {7 3) 108 314
Goodwill ansing (see note 16) 189 - - 189
Total consideration 46 8 {73) 108 503
Comprising - cash consideration 42 4 {93) 108 439
deferred consideration 44 20 - 64
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15 Dividends
2009 2008
£m £m
Amounts recognised as distrnibutions to equity holders in the penod
(note 38)
Intenm dividend paid 270.0 900
270.0 900
The dividend per share in 2009 for the Group and the Company was 12 15p per share (2008 4 05p)
16. Goodwill
GROUP £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 and 31 December 2008 1,260 0
Additions 18 9
At 31 December 2009 1,278.9
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2009 1,278.9
At 31 December 2008 1,260 0

The increase in goodwill of £18 9m dunng the year arose on the acquisition of Cheshire Cawvity Storage

Group Limited for £46 8m  See note 14 for more details

COMPANY £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 and 31 December 2008 06
At 31 December 2009 0.6
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2009 06
At 31 December 2008 06
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17 Impairment testing of goodwill

2009 2008
Allocation of goodwill to business units £m £m
Energy sourcing and customer supply business unit 1,161 1 1,142 2
Networks business unit 117 2 117 2
Corporate business unit 06 06
Total goodwill 1,278.9 1,260 0

During the year, imparment testing has been carned out at a cash-generating unit (“*CGU") level, based on
farr value less costs to sell where available or value in use where comparable market data 1s not published
In determining far value, recent published analyst reports on comparable companies have been used
Where value in use has been calculated, this 1s based on the Group's five-year medium-term plans  An
estimated growth rate of 2 2% s used, which 1s based on current information and industry norms These
medium-term plans are based on pre-tax discounted cash flows, using discount rates of between 8 8% -
10 6% Other assumptions applied to each CGU are detailed below

Energy sourcing and customer supply

The mpairment review was performed based on the value in use model, and also based on far values
Market analysis of comparable companies gives multiples for generation plant and customer energy
accounts which were applied to the CGU's assets The Directors are confident that the main reasonably
possible changes to the assumptions have been considered when testing any potential imparment in the
goodwill allocated to this business unit

Networks

The imparrment review for Networks was based on value in use calculations using the five-year medium-term
plans The key assumption which drives these calculations i1s the discount rate The Directors do not
consider the goodwill allocated to this business unit to be significant in companson with the total carrying
amount of goodwill
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18 Other intangible assets

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

EU Emissions Renewable IT software Licence Taotal
trading obligations
GROUP certificates certificates
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 1455 652 231 5 - 432 2
Additions 182 4 738 797 - 3359
Transfers - - 26 - 26
Disposals {145 5) (65 2) (4 1) - {204 B)
At 1 January 2009 182 4 738 3097 - 5659
Additions 1015 810 44 4 - 226.9
Acquired in business
combination - 212 21 388 621
Disposals (182 4) (95 3) (2 6) - {280 3)
At 31 December 2009 1015 80.7 353.6 388 574.6
Amortisation
At 1 January 2008 - - {128 3) - {128.3)
Charge for the year - - (26 9) - (26.9)
Disposals - - 01 - 0.1
At 1 January 2008 - - {155 1) - {155.1)
Charge for the year - - (28 2) - {28.2)
Disposals - - 15 - 1.5
At 31 December 2009 - - {181 8) - {181.8)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2009 101.5 807 171.8 38.8 3928
At 31 December 2008 182 4 738 154 6 - 410 8

The disposal of the EU Emissions trading certificates and the renewable obligations certificates relates to
the surrender of the certificates on the settlement date for the compliance penod

The hcence 1s a icence to develop and operate a gas storage facility
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18 Other intangible assets continued

EU Emissions Renewable
trading obligations
COMPANY certificates certificates IT software Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 1455 5562 435 244.2
Additions 1824 738 26 2588
Transfer - - 26 26
Disposals (145 5) (655 2) - (200 7)
At 1 January 2009 182 4 738 487 3049
Additions 1015 76 8 112 189.5
Disposals (182 4) (73 8) - {256 2)
At 31 December 2009 1015 76 8 599 238.2
Amortisation
At 1 January 2008 - - (24 2) (24 2)
Charge for the year - - {75) (7.5)
At 1 January 2009 - - (317) (317)
Charge for the year - - 59 (5.9)
At 31 December 2009 - - {37 6) (37 6}
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2009 1015 76 8 223 2006

At 31 December 2008 182 4 738 170 2732
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19 Property, plant and equipment

GROUP Land and Network  Generation Motor Equipment Assets in the
Buildings Assets Assets Vehicles and fittings course of Total
construction
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 490 8 6,936 1 1,4607 43 4 3486 950 9,374 6
Additions 319 718 0 - - 331 3059 1,088 9
Transfers 65 (11 3} 886 16 3 384 (141 1) {2 6)
Reclassification 07 - 54 - - - 61
Disposals {07) (14 0} - (57) (25) - (22 9)
At 1 January 2009 5292 76288 1,554 7 540 4176 2598 10,444 1
Additions 277 789 2 15 - 27 468 8 1,289 9
Transfers 60 (16 4) 153 5 140 394 (196 5) -
Disposals {15) (55 1) (37 6) {8 5) (10 (2 1) (105 8)
At 31 December 2009 561.4 8,346 5 1,672 1 59.5 458 7 5300 11,6282
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2008 (126 9) (1,272 1) (450 1) (86 (2659 {2,123 6)
Charge for the year (7 1) (177 1) (97 N {(92) (322) - {323 5)
Transfers (09) 09 - - - - .
Reclassification {0 6) - {4 3) - - - (49)
Disposals 06 138 - 54 06 - 204
At 1 January 2009 {134 9) (1,434 5) (552 3) {(124) (297 5) {2,431.6)
Charge for the year (8 2) (190 0) (105 2) {11 0) (337) - (3481)
Disposals 15 405 352 77 11 - 86.0
At 31 December 2009 {141 6) {1,584.0) {622 3) (15.7) {330 1) - (2,693 7)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2009 4198 6,762.5 1,049 8 438 128 6 5300 8,934.5
At 31 December 2008 394 3 6,194 3 1,002 4 416 1201 2598 8,0125

The carrying amount of the Group's generation assets includes an amount of £203 3m (2008 £215 0m) In
respect of assets held under finance leases
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19. Property, plant and equipment continued

COMPANY Land and Equipment Assets in the
Buildings and fitkngs course of Total
construction
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 78 74 5 130 953
Additions - - 278 278
Transfers 39 192 (257) (2.6)
Disposals - (17) - 17
At 1 January 2009 117 920 15 1 118 8
Additions - - 265 265
Transfers 30 176 (20 6) -
Disposals - - (33) (3.3)
At 31 December 2009 147 109 6 177 142 0
Land and Equipment Assets in the
Buwldings and fittings course of Total
construction
£m £m £m £m
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2008 (20) {49 8) - (51.8)
Charge for the year (05) {(96) (10 1)
At 1 January 2009 (25) {59 2) - (61 7)
Charge for the year (05) {12 2) - (127
At 31 December 2009 (30} {71 4) - (74.4)

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2009 117 382 17.7 67.6

At 31 December 2008 92 328 151 571
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20. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2009

COMPANY Shares Loans Total
£m £m £m

At 1 January 2009 574 5 1,726 1 2,300.6
Increase In Investments 46 8 - 46.8
Repayments of loans - {79 8) (79.8)
At 31 December 2009 621.3 1,646 3 2,267.6

Detals on movements in loans are as follows

Balance at

Balance 31

at1 Increasel/( December

January Decrease) 2009

2009 in loans

£m £m £m

Leans to EDF Energy Networks (SPN) plc 224 (22 4) -
Leans to EDF Energy Networks (EPN) plc 384 (38 1) 03
Loans to EDF Energy Networks (LPN} plc 193 (19 3) -
Loans to EDF Energy 1 Limited 410 - 41.0
Loans to EDF Energy (Energy Branch) plc 1710 - 171.0
Leoans to West Burton Property Limited 3838 - 383.8
Loans to EDF Energy Customers plc 1057 - 105.7
Loans to CSW Investments 4390 - 439.0
Loans to Deltabrand Limited 499 9 - 499.9
Loans to Kirkheaton Wind Lirmited 38 - 38
Loans to High Hedley Limited 08 - 08
Loans to EDF Energy Development plc 10 - 10
1,726 1 (79 8) 1,646.3

The princtpal undertakings at 31 December 2009, which are incorporated in Great Britain and are registered
and operate in England and Wales (unless otherwise stated), are as follows

Name of subsidiary

British Energy Direct Limited

CSW Investments®

Cheshire Cawity Storage Group Limited
Cheshire Cawvity Storage 1 Limited *

Deletepicnic Limited
Deltabrand Limited
District Energy Limited
EDF Energy 1 Limited *

ECF Energy (Asset Management) Limited *
EDF Energy (Contract Services) Limited *

EDF Energy Contracting Limited *
EDF Energy (Cottam Power) Limited *

EDF Energy Customers plc *

Proportion  Proportion
of of voting
ownership  power held
interest % %
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal
activity

Sale of electnicity
Holding company
Holding company
Provision of gas storage
facilies

Holding company
Holding company

Sale of electricity
Marketing and supply of
electneity and gas
Investment company
Maintenance of distribution
networks

Electrical contracting
Provision and supply of
electricity generation
Electricity retailing
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20. Investments in subsidiary undertakings continued

Name of subsidiary

EDF Energy (Development) plc*
EDF Energy (Energy Branch) plc

EDF Energy (Enterprises) Limited

EDF Energy Homephone Limited

EDF Energy Insurance Limited

EDF Energy (IDNO Finance) Limited *

EDF Energy (IDNQ) Limited *

EDF Energy {London Heat & Power) Lirmited *

EDF Energy {Metro Holdings) Limited *
EDF Energy Networks Limited

EDF Erergy Networks (EPN) plc

EDF Energy Networks (LPN) plc

EDF Energy Networks (SPN) plc *

EDF Energy (Northern Offshore Wind) Limited”

EDF Energy Powerlink Limited*

EDF Energy (Powerlink Holdings) Limited *
EDF Energy {Projects) Limited *

EDF Energy (Services) Limited

EDF Energy {South East) plc *

EDF Energy (South East Generation) Limited
EDF Energy (South Eastern Services) Limited *
EDF Energy (Sutton Bridge Holdings) Limited *

EDF Energy (Sutton Bridge Power ) *
EDF Energy (Sutton Bridge Power B) Limited *
EDF Energy (Transport Services) Limited

EDF Energy (West Burton Power) Limited*
High Hedley Hope Wind Limited*

Jade Power Generation Limited *
Kirkheaton Wind Limited*

Lea Valley Utihties Limited *

London ESCO Limited*

London Power SB Limited*

Norfolk Offshore Wind Limited *

SEEBOARD Energy Gas Limited*
SEEBOARD Energy Limited*

Sutton Bridge Financing Limited* (Cayman
Islands)

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

Proportion  Proportion Principal
of of voting activity
awnership  power held
interest % %
100% 100% Holding company
100% 100% Investment in electncity
generation
100% 100% Investments in commercial
projects
100% 100% Telecoms retailing
100% 100% Insurance
100% 100% Investment company
100% 100% Electricity distribution project
100% 100% Generation and supply of
electricity and heat
100% 100% Investment company
100% 100% Maintenance of distribution
networks
100% 100% Management of distribution
network
100% 100% Management of distnbution
network
100% 100% Management of distribution
network
100% 100% Development of generation
and supply
80% 80% Asset management
100% 100% Investment company
100% 100% Investment company
100% 100% Electnicity distribution project
100% 100% Holding company
100% 100% Holding company
100% 100% Property management
100% 100% Investment in power
generation company
100% 100% Prowvision and supply of
electricity generation
100% 100% Provision and supply of
electnicity generation
100% 100% Provision and supply of
transport services
100% 100% Power generation
100% 100% Renewable power generation
100% 100% Power generation
75% 75% Renewable power generation
100% 100% Electricity distribution project
100% 100% Renewable energy projects
100% 100% Investment in power
generation company
100% 100% Development of generation
and supply
100% 100% Gas supply
100% 100% Energy supply
100% 100% Financial activities
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20 investments in subsidiary undertakings continued

Name of subsidiary

Sutton Brndge Investors *

Sutton Bridge Power Fund*

The Barkantine Heat & Power Company
Limited*

West Burton Limited*

West Burton Property Limited*

* Held indirectly

21. Interests 1n associate

EDF ENERGY PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2009

Proportion Proportion Principal
of of voting activity
ownership  power held
interest % %
100% 100% Investment in power
generation company
100% 100% Investment company
100% 100% Generation and supply of
electricity and heat
100% 100% Power generation
100% 100% Investment company

2009 2008
£m £m
Cost of investment in associate 101 10 1
Share of post-acquisihon gains net of dividend 50.7 48 3
Total investment 60.8 584
Provision for impairment (40.0) -
Carrying value of associate 20.8 58 4
2009 2008
Amounis relating to associate £m £m
Total assets 900 950
Provision (40 0) -
Total habilities (29 2) (36 6)
Revenues 3348 3340
{Loss)/profit (23 9) 134

Details of the Group's associate at 31 December 2009 are as follows

Name of associate Place of

incorporation
and operation

Barking Power Limited Great Britain

Proportion of

ownership
interest %

18 6%

Proportion of Method used to

voting power account for
held % investment
25% Equity

The associate 1s held indirectly

During the year the Group has made a provision for impairment on its investment in Barking Power Limited
of £40 Om This provision has been calculated with reference to the future expected cperational performance
of Barking and expected achievable prices for the output
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22. Interests in joint ventures

The Group has the following interests in joint ventures

Name of joint venture Place of Proportion of  Proportion
incarporaticn ownership of voting
and operation interest %  power held

%

Power Asset Development Company Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

Trans4m Limited Great Britain 25 0% 25 0%

SOLVe Unincorporated 50 0% 50 0%

MUJV Limited Great Britain 49 9% 49 9%

Thames Valley Power Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

EDF Energy Renewables Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

Royal Oak Windfarm Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

Bicker Fen Windfarm Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

Burnfoot Windfarm Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

Farfield Windfarm Limited Great Brntain 50 0% 50 0%

Rusholme Windfarm Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

Walkway Windfarm Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

Teesside Windfarm Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

Longpark Windfarm Limited Great Britain 50 0% 50 0%

The share of the assets, habilities, revenue and expenses of the joint ventures which are included in the

consoldated financial statements, via proportionate consolidation, are as follows

2009 2008

£m £m

Current assets 436 844
Non-current assets 139.5 1235
183.1 2079
Current habilities {14 9) (96 6)
Non-current liabilities (142.7) (94 9)
25.5 164

Revenue 204 166
Cost of sales (6.2) (4 8)
Administrative expenses (7.6) (7 3)
Finance costs (4.9) {4 9)
Profitf(loss) before income tax 1.7 (0 4)
Income tax {charge)/credit (0.7) 02
Net profit/(loss) 10 (0 2)

The Group's share in Trans4m Limited (trading as “Metronet Alliance™) 1s accounted for as a joint venture
because there 1s joint control, evidenced by the requirement for unammous consent of all four venturers for
the strategic and operating decisions of the company Since Metronet entered administration, Trans4dm
Limited has ceased trading
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23 Finance lease receivables

The Group 1s involved with several long-term contracts for the construction of assets which will be transferred
at the end of the concession to third parties These contracts have been accounted for as finance lease
contracts 1n accordance with IFRIC 4 Future minimum lease receipts under finance leases together with the
present value of the net mmimum lease payments are as follows

Net investment in finance

Minimum lease payments leases
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Amounts receivable under finance leases
Within one year 373 532 45.8 381
After one year but not more than five
years 125.8 1890 7 2022 1813
More than five years 1,907.0 2,2294 151 1 174 2
2,0701 24733 399 1 3936
Less Unearned future finance mcome on
finance leases {1,671 0) (2,0797) nla n/a
Present value of mimimum lease
payments receivable 399 1 3936 3991 3936
Analysed as
Current finance lease receivables
(recoverable within 12 months) 458 38 1
Non-current finance lease receivables
(recoverable after more than 12 months) 3533 3555
399.1 3936

An average effective rate of return of 8 8% (2008 8 8%)1s generated by the finance lease debiors

24 Inventories

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Raw matenals and consumables 2334 234 4 204.9 2035
Levy exemptions certificate 11.8 97 11.8 97
Work in progress 18.3 313 - -
263.5 2754 216.7 2132

None of the inventories has any exposure to changes in interest rate in the current or the preceding year
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25. Trade and other receivables

31 DECEMBER 2009

GROUP COMPANY
2008
2009 2008 2009 {restated)
£m £m £m £m
Trade receivables (1) 1,012 3 9321 829 356
Allowance for doubtfu! debts (n) (167.7) {129 4) (0.6) -
Amounts due under long-term contracts (note
26) 2.4 228 - -
Unbilled revenue 661 3 8027 - -
Amounts owed by other group companies 2394 2326 2,167.3 21493
Corporation tax (Group payments) - - - 117 0
Other debtors 338 98 423 204
Pension reimbursement rights asset (note 41) 58 54 - -
1,787 3 1,876 0 2,2919 23223

The majonty of trade recevables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14-day terms for
residential customers Interest 15 applied to major accounts when the accounts become overdue For
further information relating to related party receivables, refer to note 43 The Directors consider that

the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates their fair value

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 1294 166 6 - -
Amounts recovered during the year (7.8} (29) - -
Write off of balances relating to Metronet - (712) - -
Increase in allowance recognised in profit or loss 379 369 06 -
Arising on business combinations 82 - - -
At 31 December 167 7 1294 06 -

The provision of £71 2min relation to the activibies of Metronel was wnitten off in 2008

Included within the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with a carrying value of £441 Om (2008
£477 9m) which are overdue at the reporting date The average age of these debts 1s 98 days (2008 94

days) The Company has £1 9m of overdue balances {2008 £0 5m} with an average age of 200 days (2008
53 days)

Provisions have been established against these balances to the extent that they are not considered
recoverable, and in accordance with the Group’s policy on bad debt provisioning See note 42 for further
details on bad debt provisions and credit nsks

included n the value of other debtors for the Group, 1s £1 9m relating to value added taxation ("VAT") (2008
£12 3m labiity included within other liabilites) The VAT receivable and payable 1s remitted to the
appropriate tax body on a quarterly basis
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26. Long-term contracts

GROUP
2009 2008
£m £m
Contracts in progress at balance sheet date
Amounts due from contract customers included
in trade and other receivables (note 25) 24 228
Amounts due to contract customers included in
other habilittes (note 28) (72 9) (79 4)
(70 5) {56 6)
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits
less recognised losses to date 462 4 559 5
Less progress billings {532 9) (616 1)
(70 5) (56 6)

There are a number of long-term PFl and PPP contracts within the Group The Powerlink contract which
ends 1n 2028 1s part of a PFI consortium which includes the refurbishment of the legacy infrastructure assets
for London Underground The Allenby contract is a PFI electrical infrastructure contract with the Ministry of
Defence, ending in 2041 Inflation rate risk anses from these long-term contracts because revenue streams
are generally based on the retaill price index and index of average earnings, but costs generally rise based
on the construction price index

Revenue under long-term contracts amounted to £71 4m in 2009, and £58 9m 1n 2008

There are no such long-term contracts within the Company
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27 Cash and cash equivalents

GROUP COMPANY
2008
2009 2008 2009 (restated)
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 96 04 96 04
Short-term deposits 3888 106 2 227 260
398 4 106 6 323 26 4

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates Short-term
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates The farr value
of cash and cash equivalents 1s £398 4m (2008 £106 6m) The Group operates a collective net overdraft
facility arrangement which permits the offset of cash balances with overdrafts in the subsidiary companies
The element of the 2008 Company cash balance which relates to overdrafts Iin subsidiary companies has
been re-classified to Trade and other receivables to reflect the nature of this agreement

At 31 December 2009, the Group had avalable £1,070 Om (2008 £1,051m) of undrawn committed
borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met The Group cash balance
includes £48 4m (2008 £47 1m) of cash which must be maintained as a minimum cash balance in some
entities, in accordance with contractual obhigations with financial institutions There were no restrictions n
place over the Company's cash balances in 2009 or 2008

28 Other habilities

GROUP COMPANY
2008
2009 2008 2009 (restated)
£m £m £m £m
Trade creditors 1,143 5 9717 6728 6353
Amounts due under long-term contracts (note 26 ) 72.9 794 -
Other payables 428.6 422 4 825 267
Deferred income due within one year 549 498 - -
Interest payable 733 78 1 24 65
Amount owed to intermediate parent companies 101.6 576 1019 339
Amounts owed to other Group companies - - 3398 3181
Total other liabilities recoverable within 1 year 1,874 8 1,659 0 1,199 4 1,020 5
Deferred income — non current 1,908 § 1,791 1 - -
Total other habihties 3,783 3 34101 1,199 4 1,0205

The 2008 company numbers have been restated o move £112 8m of renewable obligation certificates from
trade creditors to short-term provisions

For further information regarding related party payables refer note 43

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms, with the exception of
energy purchases which are usually settled on market terms within 14 days Other payables are non-interest
bearing

Deferred income includes the consumer contributions of £1,687 4m (2008 £1,525 5m) towards distribution
network assets which are credited to the income statement over the lives of the distnibution network assets to
which they relate
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29 Borrowings

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Current
Sutton Brnidge bonds due June 2022 (1) 180 16 4 - -
PADCO loan (u) 25 09 - -
Short-term borrowing (in) 781.6 1,084 1 730.0 7900
€500m 4 375% Eurobond due December 2010 (1v) 4441 - 4441 -
1,246 2 1,101 4 1,174.1 7900
Non-current
€500m 4 375% Eurobond due December 2010 (iv) - 476 2 - 4762
£200m 8 75% Eurobond due March 2012 208 8 2129 - -
Sutton Bridge bonds due June 2022 (1) 1553 189 2 - -
£50m Index Linked Bond due June 2023 (iv) 59.2 599 - -
£350m 5 75% Bonds due 2024 (v) 3490 348 9 - -
£200m 8 5% Eurobond due March 2025 246 7 2497 - -
£300m 5 5% Eurobond due June 2026 (1v) 297 3 297 2 - -
£300m 6 125% Bonds due June 2027 (v) 3048 3051 - -
£150m 3 125% Index Linked Bonds due June
2032 {v) 180 4 18256 - -
€800m Eurobond due June 2013 {v) 7104 7620 7104 7620
€410m Eurobond due December 2014 (v) 364.1 3905 364 1 3905
€390m Eurcbond due December 2012 (v) 346.3 3715 346 3 3715
£300m 5 125% Eurobond due November 2016 (iv) 298 8 - - -
£300m 6 125% Eurobond due November 2031 (iv) 296 8 - - -
£350m 6 0% Bonds due November 2026 (1v) 343.0 - - -
PADCO loan {(n) 445 499 - -
4,2054 38955 1,420.8 2,0002
Total borrowings 5,4516 4,996 9 2,594.9 2,780 2

All borrowings are denominated in sterhng and valued at amortised cost unless otherwise stated With the
exception of the PADCO loan and the Sutton Bridge bonds, the borrowings are unsecured, see (1) and (i)

overleaf

(1)

The secured bonds which are guaranteed by Sutton Bridge Power Limited comprise two
tranches of 2&6-year amortising bonds ssued by Sutton Bndge Financing Limited The first
tranche comprises a remaining principal of £105 9m (2008 £117 Om) at a fixed interest rate of
8 625% The second tranche comprises a remaining principal of US$85 8m (2008 $90 0m) at a
fixed mterest rate of 7 97% The Group has entered into currency swap arrangements in order to
convert the principal and interest payment on the bonds into sterling for perods up to matunty,
see note 42 The bonds are secured by means of fixed and floating charges over substantially all
the net assels of Sutton Bridge and at all times rank parn passu and without preference among
themselves The Sutton Bridge bonds mature in June 2022 but prnincipal repayments
commenced from June 2002 Principal and interest payments are made semi-annually in arrears
on the bonds on 30 June and 31 December
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29 Borrowings continued

(11}

{m)

(v)

(v}

The PADCO loan of £47 Om (2008 £50 8m) relates to EDF Energy plc’'s share of PADCO's
drawn down fean facities relating to PADCO construction contracts Loan facilites of £105m
and £18m were entered into on 13 August 1998, secured by fixed and floating charges over
PADCO's assets PADCO has commenced repayment by quarterly instalments interest
charged on the loans has been fixed to matunty under swap transaction arrangements at an
interest rate of 6 0% per annum for the £105m facility and at an average of 5 4% for the £18m
facility

The short-term borrowing includes £730 0m (2008 £790 Om) which relates to money borrowed
under a facility extended to EDF Energy plc by EDF S A, the ultimate parent company Draw-
downs under this facility are re-negotiated on a monthly basis, and either increased/decreased
or fully repaid The remaining short-term borrowing relates to commercial paper and overdrafts

These bonds were all 1ssued under the Group’s medium term notes programme In 2004, the
Group consolidated two Medium-term notes programmes into a €4 Obn medium-term note
programme This programme was re-issued as a £10 0Obn programme on 13 June 2008
Currently the Group has uncommitted lines available under this facility in the region of £7 5bn
During 2009, the Group has 1ssued three new fixed rate sterling bonds under this programme
totalling £950m

In 2008 the Group entered into three bonds totalling €1,600m with ancther Company within the
EDF Group The €800m bond, matunng on 27 June 2013 has interest payable at a floating rate
of EURIBOR 6 months +0 400% The principal has been swapped to sterling, and the interest
rate has been swapped into a rate of LIBOR 6 months + 0 394% The €390m bond, maturing on
8 December 2012 has interest payable at a floating rate of EURIBOR 6 months +2 10% The
principal has been swapped to sterling, and the interest rate has been swapped into a bond at a
rate of LIBOR 6 months + 2201% The €410m bond, maturing on 12 December 2014 has
interest payable at a floating rate of EURIBOR 6 months +2 30% The principal has been
swapped to sterling, and the interest rate has been swapped inlo a rate of LIBOR 6 menths +
2409%
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30. Derivative financial instruments

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m

Current
Derivatives that are designated as hedging
instruments carned at fair value
Foreign currency forward contracts 53.2 160 9 53.2 160 9
Derivatives that are designated as hedging
instruments n a cash flow hedge,
Commodity purchase contracts (445.7) (458 9) (445 7) (458 9)
Foreign currency swap contracts 156 4 580 156 4 58 0
Denvatives at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL)
Commodity purchase contracts (66 9) 81) {66.9) 81)
Foreign currency forward contracts 16 2 101 16.2 10 1
Total current derivative financial
instruments (286 8) (238 Q) (286.8) {238 0)
Split by
Current assets 2871 388 1 2871 388 1
Current habilities (573 9) (626 1) (573 9) {626 1)
Non-current
Denvatives that are designated as hedging
instruments carried at fair value
Foreign currency forward contracts 202 1096 202 1096
Derivatives that are designated as hedging
instruments in a cash flow hedge-
Commodity purchase contracts {118.0) (192 6) {118 0) (192 B)
Interest rate swap contracts (6.7) 87) - -
Cross currency interest rate swaps 944 199 7 94.4 1907
Foreign currency swap contracts 255 2992 311 2933
Derivatives at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL)
Commodity purchase contracts (25.8) (280 3) {25.8) (280 3)
Foreign currency forward contracts (12 5) - {12 5) -
Total non-current derivative financial
instruments (22.9) 126 9 {10.6) 1297
Split by
Non-current assets 154 4 7351 154.4 729 2
Non-current hiabilities {177 3) (608 2) (165.0) (599 5)
Total derivative financial instruments (3097) (111 1) (297.4) (108 3)

Further details of derivative financial instruments are provided in note 42 The change in far value of

denvatives classified at far value through the income statement 1s separately disclosed on the face of the

income statement
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31 Provisions for liabilities

The movements in provisions during the current year are as follows

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

GROUP At 1 January Ansingon Utlhsed in Released Ansing Unwinding At 31
2009 acquisition the year inthe  during of discount December
year the year 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Medway power 258 - (29 4) - - 128 92
contract
Obligations under EU
emissions 1801 - (180 1) - 102 1 - 1021
Renewable obligation
certificates 1128 - (112 8) - 168 5 - 168 5
Insurance 269 - - (113) 100 - 25.6
Decommissioning 301 - - (16 6) - 31 16.6
Legal disputes 97 - (2 8) (37 20 - 52
Onerous lease
contracts 41 408 (10 0) (17 - 02 334
Restructuring costs - - - - 290 290
Rectification costs 86 - 47) (2 8) 12 - 23
Metronet 07 - (07) - - - -
Other costs 21 - (0 8) - - - 13
400 9 408 {341 3) (36 1) 3128 16 1 3932
The provisions have been splt as follows
At 31 December 2009 At 31 December 2008
GROUP Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Medway power contract 87 05 92 16 6 92 258
Obligations under EU
emIsSsIons 102 1 - 1021 180 1 - 180 1
Renewable obligation
certificates 168 5 - 168 5 112 8 - 112 8
Insurance 256 - 2586 269 - 269
Decommissioning - 16 6 16 6 - 301 301
Legal disputes 52 - 52 97 - 97
Onerous lease contracts 111 223 334 08 33 41
Restructuring costs 290 - 290 - - -
Rectification costs 23 - 23 18 68 86
Metronet - - - o7 - 07
Other costs 10 03 13 17 04 21
3535 387 393.2 3511 498 400 9
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31 Provisions for habihties continued

COMPANY At 1 Januvary Utiised in the Released in  Ansing during At 31 December
2009 (restated) year the year the year 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Onerous lease contracts 41 (07) (17) 03 20
Obligations under EU
emIssIons 48 (4 8) - 10 1.0
Renewable obligation
certificates 1128 (112 8) - 130 8 130.8
Restructuring costs - - - 240 240
Insurance 03 (02) - - 01
Dilapidations 03 (03) - - -
Other costs 11 (11) - - -
123 4 (119 9) {(17) 156 1 157 9
The provisions have been split as follows
At 31 December 2009 At 31 December 2008 (restated)
COMPANY Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Onerous lease contracts 0.5 1.5 20 05 36 41
Obligations under EU -
emissions 1.0 1.0 48 - 48
Renewable abligation 130.8 - 130.8 112 8 - 1128
certificates
Restructuring costs 24,0 - 2490 - - -
Insurance 0.1 - 01 03 - 03
Dilapidations - - - 03 - 03
Other costs - - - 11 - 11
156 4 1.5 1579 119 8 36 123 4

The 2008 figures for the Company have been restated to include the renewable obligation certificates which
were recorded as other liabilities in 2008

The Medway power contract provisions resulted from the acquisition of SEEBOARD These provisions
represent the difference between the contract price and the estimated market price of energy at the date of
acquisition The discount rate used in arnving at the provisions was a risk adjusted rate The Medway
provision will unwind 1n early 2011

The provisions for obligations under EU emissions represents the additional certificates required to cover the
Group's carbon emissions In excess of the free allocation of certificates It 1s expected that this provision will
be utiised in 2010 because the Group 1s required to provide carbon certificates on an annual basis

The provision for renewable obligations certificates represents the additionat certificates required to cover
the Group's obligations to supply its customers with certain amounts of electncity which have been
generated from renewable energy sources This provision will be utiised in 2010

The insurance provision 1s based on an assessment of the Group's known labilities as at 31 December
2009 The prowvision I1s calculated by the Group’s captive insurers, using various assumptions and 1s to cover
the Group’s estimated exposure on various motor, perscnal or claims against the networks business The
proviston 15 expected to be uthised within one year based on claim history
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31 Provisions for habilities continued

The decommissioning provision 1s to provide for the future costs of decommissioning Cottam, West Burton
and Sulton Bridge power stations This prowision has been calculated on a discounted basis with the
discount unwound over the remaining period to decommissioning, between 2020 and 2030 A detailed
review of the provision was carried out duning the year, leading to a reduction in provision of £16 6m

The legal disputes provision relates to costs expected to be paid out under a number of ongoing legal cases
Any uncertainties within the cases have been considered In the calculation of the provision None of the
cases are expected to be settled after 2010

The provision for onerous lease contracts represents the difference between the projected rental income
from various properties and the amounts payable by the Group for those properties under currently existing
contracts These are expected to be utilised between 2010 and 2014

The restructuring provision covers the costs of severance related to restructuring announced before 31
December 2009 and 1s expected to be utiised fully in 2010

The rectification provision covers the additional cost of work to be carned out 1n order to fulfit contractual
obligations for contracts which have been completed This provision will be utihsed in 2010

The Metronet provision covered the additional costs likely to be incurred as a result of Metronet entering
administration  £15 6m of this provision was released during 2008 whilst the remaining provision was
released during 2009

32 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax (hlabilities) and assets recognised by the Group and movements
thereon during the current and prior reporting period

GROUP Retirement Farr value
Accelerated tax benefit  of derivative
depreciation obligations  instruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 (921 1) 552 (100 3) (171) (983 3)
Charge to income (48 2) (17 6) 64 5 (15 3) (16 6)
Credit/(charge) to equity - - 161 0 (095) 1605
Booked on acquisitions {07) - - - (07)
At 1 January 2009 (970.0) 376 1252 {329) (8401)
Charge to income {104 2) {8 0) (37 6) 570 (92 8)
Credit to equity - - 506 - 506
Booked on acquisitions 15 - - 12 27
At 31 December 2009 (1,072 7) 296 138 2 253 {879 6)
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32. Deferred tax continued

31 DECEMBER 2009

COMPANY Accelerated Retrement  Fair value of
tax benefit derivative
depreciation obligations  instruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 (0 5) (8 5) (103 6) 42 (108.4)
Credit/{charge} to iIncome 06 52 64 5 (4 4) 659
Credit to equity - - 162 5 - 162.5
At 1 January 2009 01 (3 3) 123.4 (0 2) 120.0
{Charge)/credit to iIncome (18) 56 (38 0) 64 (27 8)
Credit to equity - - 501 - 50 1
At 31 December 2009 (17 2.3 1355 6.2 142 3

See note 13 for an analysis of the charge 1n the year and prior year

All deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset since there 1s considered to be a legally enforceable nght to
do so The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets 1931 198 9 144 0 123 5
Deferred tax habiities {1,072 7) (1,039 0) (17) (35)
At 31 December {879 6) (840 1) 142 3 1200
33 Minonty interest
GROUP
£m
At 1 January 2009 49
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 02
Acquisition of minonty interests {0 8)
At 31 December 2009 43

During 2009, the Group purchased theirr 19% minonty shareholding in London ESCO limited from the
London Development Agency This company has become a 100% owned subsidiary

The remaining minornty interest arises from the Group's holdings in EDF Energy Powerlink Limited The

Group holds 80% of the shares in EDF Energy Powerlink Limited, with the other remaining 20% being held
by Balfour Beatty plc and ABB Investments Limited

58




EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
34 Commitments
Capital and other commitments

At 31 December 2009, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment amounting to £864 Om (2008 £849 1m) and contractual commitments for the
acquisition of intangible assets of £ril (2008 £38 3m) The Company had entered into £nil of contractual

commitments for the purchase intangtble assets (2008 £38 3m)

At 31 December 2009, the Group and the Company had contracted to purchase power, gas and other fuel to

the value of £1,515 Om (2008 £ 1,892 Om)

QOperating lease commitments given

Future mimmum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows

2009 2008
GROUP £m £m
Within one year 260 234
After one year but not more than five years 116.3 103 2
More than five years 174 4 1709
Future lease charges 316 7 2975

2009 2008
COMPANY £m £m
Within one year 156 128
After one year but not more than five years 611 475
More than five years 818 679
Future lease charges 158 5 1282

Operating lease commitments received

Future mintmum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows

2009 2008
GROUP and COMPANY £m £m
Within one year 3.0 32
After one year but not more than five years 12.0 125
More than five years 45 72
Future lease receivables 195 229
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34. Commitments {continued)

Finance lease commitments

The Group has finance leases for vanous items of property, plant and machinery Future mimmum lease
payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as
follows

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £mn £m £m
Within one year 36.5 363 182 157
After one year but not more than five
years 148 0 147 1 875 771
More than five years 228.7 266 1 188 6 208 9
413 2 4495 294 3 3017
Less Future finance charges (118.9) {147 8)
Minimum lease payments 2943 3097

The Group's finance lease commitments relate to the Cottam power station under a finance lease with
another company within the EDF SA group The term of the lease 1s 11 years and has an effective interest
rate of 7 0% based on LIBOR rates at inception Repayments under the lease are re-calculated quarterly and
no arrangements have been entered tnto for contingent rental payments The lease 1s denominated in
sterling

Financing commitrments

The Group has commiited to provide its share of further equity funding and subcrdinated debt to joint
ventures and associates n respect of PFI projects These commitments totalled £25 Om at 31 December
2009 (2008 £25 0m)

35. Contingent liabilities

The Company and certain subsidiary companies have given guarantees In respect of bonds, of the Group's
own contracts, and have given guarantees in respect of the Group's share of contractual obligations of
assoclates and joint ventures

The Group has given a joint and several guarantee of Metronet Allance’s obligations under its contracts with
Metronet BCV and SSL Under the terms of the contract, EDF Energy's maximum share of Metronet
Alliance’s obligations would be £1150m A similar guarantee has been given relating o EDF Energy
Contracting Limited’s obligations under contract to Metronet BCV and SSL which has also been imited to a
maximum of £49 8m The lkelihood of transferring benefit under the terms of these guarantees i1s considered
unlikely The Group has given letters of credit to various associates and joint ventures

The Group has given guarantees in respect of the construction of certain National Grid assets relating to the
Group's future construction of power plants A potential liability of £12 4m (2008 £49 6m) could arise as a
result of these guarantees and no provision has been made since the Group fully intends to construct the
assets and therefore not break these guarantees
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36 Share capital

2009 2008 2009 2008
GROUP and COMPANY Number Number £m £m
Authorised
Ordinary shares of £0 5833 each 2,228,713,439 2,228,713,439 1,300 0 1,300 0
Ordinary shares of £0 50 each 300,000,002 300,000,002 1500 1500
2009 2008 2009 2008
Number Number £m £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0 5833 each 2,222,739,164 2,222,739,164 1,296 6 1,296 6

The Company has one class of ordinary share 1n 1ssue which carries no right to fixed income

37 Capital and redemption reserves

Share Capital Redemption
GROUP premium reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 139 101 110 350
Contribution ansing on empioyee share
offerings - 08 - 0s
At 31 December 2008 139 109 110 358
Contribution arising cn employee share
offerings - (17) - {17)
At 31 December 2009 13.9 92 11.0 341
Share Capital Redemption
COMPANY premium reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 139 20 110 269
Contnbution arising ocn employee share
schemes - 086 - 06
At 31 December 2008 139 26 110 27.5
Contribution ansing on employee share
schemes - {07) - on
At 31 December 2009 139 1.9 110 26.8

The capital contribution represented the costs incurred in providing the favourable terms to employees In
respect of shares in EDF as part of the inital public offering in 2005, see note 10 The change in the capital
contribution during the year relates to the ACT2007 shares

The redemption reserve relates to the repurchase of its own shares by the company in 1994 and 1995, and
their subsequent cancellation
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38. Retained earnings

GROUP COMPANY

£m £m
At 1 January 2008 997 1 107 4
Profit for the year 168 0 112 2
Equity dividends paid {note 15) (80 0) (90 0)
At 1 January 2009 1,075.1 129.6
Profit for the year 436 8 1007
Equity dividends paid {note 15) {270 0) (270 0)
At 31 December 2009 1,241.9 (39.7)
39 Hedging reserve
GROUP COMPANY
£m £m
At 1 January 2008 2005 2240
Net tosses on items in cash flow hedge (574 9) (580 5)
Deferred taxation on net losses in cash flow hedge 161 0 162 5
At 1 January 2009 (213 4) (194.0)
Net losses on items in cash flow hedge {181 1) (179 1)
Deferred taxation on net losses in cash flow hedge 506 501
At 31 December 2009 (343 9) (323 0)

The hedging reserve represents the commodity price, foreign exchange and interest rate movements on
hedged contracts that are classified as cash flow hedges

The matunty analysis of the amounts included within the hedging reserve is as follows

GROUP 31 December 31 December

2009 2008

£m £m

Less than one year (357.0) (282 3)

Between one to five years {111.6) (10 0)

More than five years {9.1) (4 3)
Total fair value losses on denvatives designated as effective

cash flow hedges {(477.7) (296 6)

Deferred taxation 133.8 832

Total {343 9) {213 4)

During the year a loss of £107 5m (2008 a loss of £193 8m) was recycled from the hedging reserve and ncluded
within fuel, energy and related purchases, in relation to contracts which matured

62




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
39 Hedging reserve continued

EDF ENERGY PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2009

COMPANY 31 December 31 December
2009 2008
£m £m
Less than one year (357.0) (282 3)
Between one to five years (111.6) {10 0)
More than five years - 29
Total farr value losses on dernvatives designated as effective
cash flow hedges (468 6) (289 4)
Deferred taxation 1456 954
Total (323 0) (194 0)
40. Notes to the cash flow statement
GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £fm (restated)
£m
Profit before taxation 643 8 2392 1319 1122
Adjustments for
{Gain)/loss on derivatives (125 3) 2202 (125 3) 2202
Depreciation 348 1 3235 127 101
Amortisation of intangible assets 28 2 269 59 75
Utilrsation of carbon and renewable oblgations certificates 256 2 2007 256 2 2007
Other (gains) and losses (2 4) 05 05 10
Finance cost/{income) 141 4 2323 {142 5) (78 0)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment {5 0) (14 5) {0 6) -
Gain on disposal of assets under finance lease - (4 6) - -
(Decrease)/increase In provisions (63 9) 106 345 {3 5)
Decrease in post-employment benefits (20 4) (22 3) (17 (2 5)
IFRS 2 share costs 3.8 56 37 07
Amortisation of customer contributions (50.2) (45 4) - -
Release of Metronet provision (0.7) (26 6) - -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 1,1536 1,146 1 1753 468 4
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 133 (127 2) {3.5) (132 9)
Decreasef{increase) in receivables 9658 {263 6) (86 7) (853 B)
{(Decrease)/increase in payables (713 0} 134 2 1790 1227
(Decrease) In value of disposal group - (20} - -
Cash generated by/(used in) operations 1,419.7 8876 264 1 (395 4)
Pension deficit payment (36.5) (39 8) (27) {(22)
income taxes (paid)/received (59.4) (38 1) 114 6 156 5
Net cash fromf{used in) operating activities 1,323 8 8097 376 0 {241 1)
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41. Retirement benefit schemes

The principal pension schemes of EDF Energy plc are the EDF Energy Pension Scheme (EEPS) and the
EDF Energy Group of the Electnicity Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS) Both of these schemes are defined
benefit schemes On 1 September 2007 the EDF Energy Group of the ESPS was created by the merger of
the Company's two ESPS Groups, the London Electricity Group of the ESPS and the SEEBOARD Group of
the ESPS

The London Electricity Group and SEEBOARD Group of the ESPS closed to new employees in April 1994
and July 1995 respectively New employees were offered membership of the following schemes the
SEEBOARD final Salary Pension Plan, the London Electricity 1994 Retrement Plan {(LERP), the 24seven
Group Personal Pension Plan (24seven GPP), and the SEEBOARD Pension Investment Plan The first of
these schemes was a defined benefit scheme whilst all the others are defined contribution schemes The
Group closed its non-ESPS pension arrangements with effect from 29 February 2004 A new scheme, the
EDF Energy Pension Scheme, a final salary arrangement, replaced these for future service from 1 March
2004 A special contribution of £2 Om was made to the EDF Energy Pension Scheme at inception, and the
regular ongoing employer's contribution has been assessed as 10% of pensionable pay This contribution
rate will be reviewed as a result of future actuaral valuations

The majonty of employees of EDF Energy Powerlink Limited are members of the LRT Pension Fund which is
a defined benefit scheme and is operated by TfL The TfL pension scheme 1s a final salary scheme for
eligible employees of TfL and its operating businesses which include London Underground EDF Energy
Powerlink Limited contributes to the TfL scheme for those employees who were transferred to EDF Energy
Powerlink Limited under the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations, (“TUPE")
The TfL pension scheme 1s a multi-employer scheme in which the assets and liabities relative to each
participating employer are separately identifiable Accordingly, the following disclosures relate only to the
section of the scheme atinbutable to EDF Energy Powerlink Limited

Included in the Group's trade receivables 1s an amount which represents the reimbursement of the TiL
pension habiity This anses through the contractual obligation that London Underground Limited has with
EDF Energy Powerlink Limited to reimburse any lump sum payments that are required of EDF Energy
Powerlink Limited by the scheme to fund a scheme deficit or contribution that exceed an agreed annual
contribution, calculated as a percentage of the pensionable salarnies of the EDF Energy Powerlink Limited
employees who are members of the scheme For periods up to the end of March 2007, the agreed annual
contribution percentage was 16 2% of salanes of applicable employees From April 2007 onwards, the
agreed annual contnbution percentage has increased to 26 0%

The latest full actuarial valuations of the EDF Energy Group of the ESPS and EEPS were camed out by
Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow, consulting actuarnies, as at 31 March 2007 The valuation was agreed on 25
January 2008 The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and
past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method The results of the latest full
actuanal valuation as at 31 March 2009 of the TfL pension scheme, being carned out by Watson Wyatt, was
used to determine the liability at 31 December 2009 and 2008

The principal financial assumptions used to calculate ESPS and EEPS habilities under IAS 19 were

31 December 31 December

2009 2008
%pa %pa
Discount rate ESPS 5.7 65
Discount rate EEPS 56 65
Inflabion assumption ESPS 36 26
Inflabion assumption EEPS 3.8 26
Rate of increase In salanes
- ESPS 56 46
- EEPS 53 41
Rate of increase of pensions increases
- full retail prnice indexation ("“RPI") 3.6 26
- RPI up to 5% (EEPS — service to 31 March 2006) 3.5 26
- RPtup to 2 5% (EEPS - service from 31 March 2006) 2.3 20
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The table below shows details of assumptions around mortality rates used to calculate the IAS 19 ESPS
llabilities

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

years years

Life expectancy for current male pensioner aged 60 27.2 270
Life expectancy for current female pensioner aged 60 305 304
Life expectancy for future male pensioner currently aged 40 from age 60 30.0 298
Life expectancy for future female pensioner currently aged 40 from age 60 318 317

Mortahty assumptions have been determined based on standard mortahty tables, specifically the PNA 00
standard table

These assumptions are governed by IAS 19 and do not reflect the assumptions used by the independent
actuary in the tnenmal valuation as at 31 March 2007, which determined the Group's contribution rate for
future years
The expected return on assets are set based on advice given by the Group's actuanes and reflect the market
expectations of the long-term rate of return of assets at the balance sheet date with gilts used as a
benchmark

The prnincipal financial assumptions used to calculate the TiL hability under IAS 19 were as follows

31 December 31 December

2009 2008

%pa %pa

Discount rate 58 67
Inflabhon assumption 31 15
Rate of increase in salanes 46 30
Rate of increase of pensions increases RPI 31 15

These assumptions are governed by IAS 19, and do not reflect the assumptions used by the independent
actuary in the tnennmial valuation as at 31 March 2009, which determined the Powerlink contnibution rate for
future years

When an individual ceases to be an active member of the EDF Energy section of the TfL pension scheme,
the obhgation to provide the pension benefits i1s transferred from the EDF Energy section of the scheme, to a
public sector section of the scheme At the same time, there 1s an associated transfer of assets from the EDF
sechion to the public sector section The defined benefit obligations of the EDF Energy section of the TfL
pension scheme have been measured under 1AS 19 using the assumptions in the above table for the penod
prior to the transfer of obligations, and the actual assumptions used to determine the assets transferred at
the point of the transfer of obligations
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The armount recognised In the balance sheets in respect of the Group's defined benefit retirement benefit

plans as follows

ESPS EEPS TfL Total Total

GROUP 2009 2009 2009 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit oblgations (3,085 1) (278 9) (410) ({3,4050) (2,4400)
Fair value of scheme assets 2,2910 194 2 297 2,514 9 21770
Deficit in scheme {794.1) (84 7) (11.3) {890 1) (263 0)
Unrecognised actuarnial losses 691.2 818 55 778 5 1230
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (102.9) (29) {58) (111 6) {140 0)

This amount 1s presented In post employment benefits

The Group has an employee benefits reimbursement right asset connected to the Tfl. pensicn scheme This
anses through the contractual obligation that London Underground Limited has with EDF Energy Powerlink
Limited to reimburse any payments that are required of Powerlink by the scheme that exceed a set annual
contribution of 16 2% of the gross annual salaries of the EDF Energy Powerlink employees who are
members of the scheme The Tfl. amount 1s recoverable from LUL and i1s shown in note 25

The costs associated with these defined benefit schemes are as follows

ESPS EEPS TfL Total Total
GROUP 2009 2009 2009 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Current service cost 242 110 11 363 543
Interest cost 1470 60 20 155.0 168 9
Expected return on scheme assets (118 0) (80) {(12) (127.2) (165 3)
Actuanal (gains)/losses - (09) (0.9} 07
Credit arising on change In penston scheme
rules - - - - {(320)
Changes arising on curtallments/settlements 10 - 10 22
Total operating cost 54 2 8.1 19 64 2 288

Of the charge for the year £35 3m (2008 £24 8m) has been included in personnel costs and an expense of
£28 Om (2008 expense of £4 O0m) has been included In Interest £0 8m of service cost relating to TfL has not
been recognised in the income statement as 1t was recoverable from LUL The movement in the pension
deficit during the year was greater than the 10% corndor with £0 9m (2008 £nil) being recogrnised In the
income statement The amount of the unrecognised actuanal loss in 2009 was £778 5m (2008 £123 Om)

The costs of the TfL pension have all been recharged to London Underground Limited through the pension
reimbursement rights asset (see note 25) and hence have no net impact on the income statement

In 2008 there was a credit due to changes i the pensiwon schemea rules refates to members of the previous
London section of the ESPS scheme The change affected male employees who had accrued service before
1988 and are stll currently employed As the change reduced therr future pension entittements a credit of
£32 0m was recognised in 2008 There has been no such change in 2009
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Movements in the present value of defined obhgations in the current period were as follows

ESPS EEPS TfL Total Total

GROUP 2009 2009 2009 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2,2929 117 5 296 24400 2,883 3
Service cost 242 110 11 363 543
Changes arising on curtallments/settlements 10 - - 10 22
Interest cost 147 0 60 20 1550 168 9
Actuanal losses/(gains) 7215 1320 89 862 4 (523 7)
Credit anising on change n pension scheme
rules - - . - (32 0)
Bulk transfers in 165 - - 165 -
Benefits pad (127 0) {16) (0 8) (129 4) (133 3)
Contributions by employees 90 140 02 232 203
At 31 December 3,085 1 278 9 4190 3,405 0 2,440 0
Movements in the present value of fair value of scheme assets in the current pericd were as follows

ESPS EEPS TfL Total Total
GROUP 2009 2009 2009 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m £m

AL 1 January 2,0230 1296 24 4 21770 26273
Expected return on scheme assets 118 0 80 12 127 2 1655
Actuarial gains 1835 215 33 208 3 {594 1)
Contributions by employer 325 214 14 553 516
Deficit repair payments 360 13 - 373 397
Bulk transfers in 160 - - 160 -
Benefits paid {127 0) (16) (08) (129 4) {133 3)
Contributions by employees 90 140 02 232 203
At 31 Becember 2,2910 194 2 297 2,5149 21770

The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date were as follows

Expected return

Fair value of assets

ESPS ESPS
EEPS TfL EEPS TiL ESPS EEPS TfL  Total Total
2009 2009 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2008
GROUP % % % % £m £m £m £m £m
Gilts - fixed 46 - 39 - 24590 - - 245.0 5620
- index linked 45 - 38 - 2590 - - 259.0 266 0
Equities 82 7.5 75 66 9830 100 3 196 11029 10362
Property 8.7 - 65 - 500 50 - 55.0 48 9
Corporate bonds 59 4.1 586 46 6500 689 98 728.7 2997
Cash 0.7 40 32 23 1040 200 - 124.0 (36 4)
Qther - - - - - 03 03 06
2,2910 194.2 297 25149 21770
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The history of expenence adjustments 1s as follows

31 DECEMBER 2009

ESPS EEPS TfL Total Total Total Total Total
2009 2009 2009 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

GROUP £m £m £m £fm . £m £m £m £m
Present value of
defined benefit
obligations (3,085.1) (2789) {41.0) (3,4050) (2,4400) (2,883 3) (2,765 4) (2,6315)
Far value of scheme
assets 2,291.0 194 2 297 2,5149 21770 28273 24378 22200
Deficit in the scheme (794.1) (847) (113) (8901} (2630) (256 0) (3276) (4115)
Experience
adjustments on
scheme liabilities 260 - 02 26 2 (6 8) {121 9) (60) (2380)
Percentage of
scheme habilities 0.8% - 05% 08% 03% 4 2% 02% 9 0%
Expenence
adjustments on
scheme assets 1835 215 33 208 3 {594 1) 55 252 2220
Percentage of
scheme assets 80% 11 1% 11.1% 84% (273)% 02% 10% 10 0%

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the scheme during 2010 15 £95 Om

In addition to the pension provision recognised, there 1s an additional amount of £5 4m (2008 £4 Om)
included within other habihties which relates to the unapproved pension scheme amounts

Penston disclosures relating to the Company are as foliows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

COMPANY 2009 2009 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligations (170 3) (86 6) (256 9) (159 7)
Farr value of scheme assets 128 2 60 2 188 4 1514
Defiait in scheme (42 1) (26 4) (68 5) (83)
Unrecogmsed actuanal losses/(gains) 343 260 60.3 {35
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (7 8) (0 4) (8 2) {11 8)

This amount 15 presented in non-current liabilities
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41. Retirement benefit scheme continued

Amounts recognised in expenses In respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

COMPANY

ESPS EEPS Total Total
2009 2009 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Current service cost 46 35 8.1 108
Interest cost 79 19 9.8 106
Expected return on scheme assets (6 4) (2 6) (9.0) {106)
Actuarial (gains)/iosses - (0 9) (0 9) 07
Changes arising on curtallments/settliements 09 - 0.9 14
Credit arising on change in pens:on scheme
rules - - - (34)
Total operating cost 70 19 89 95

Of the charge for the year £9 Om (2008 £8 8m) has been included in personnel costs, net of recharges, and
there was a net £0 8m interest charge (2008 £nif) which has been included in interest

Movements in the present value of defined obligations in the current period were as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

COMPANY 2009 2009 2009 2008
£fm £m £m £m

At 1 January 1233 36 4 1597 187 1
Service cost 46 35 81 108
Interest cost 79 19 98 106
Actuarial losses/(gains) 388 410 798 (43 3)
Bulk transfers n 11 - 11 -
Benefits paid (6 8) (0 5) {7 3) {7 5)
Contributions by employees 05 43 48 40
Changes arising on curtailments/settlements 09 - 09 14
Credit ansing on change in pension scheme
rules - - - (3 4)
At 31 December 170 3 866 256 9 159 7

Movements in the present value of far value of scheme assets in the current period were as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total
COMPANY 2009 2009 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 1101 413 151.4 172 8
Expected return on scheme assets 64 26 9.0 1086
Actuanal losses/(gains) 100 69 16.9 (42 0)
Bulk transfers in - - - -
Contributions by employer 62 55 11.7 113
Benefits paid {6 8) {0 5) {7.3) (7 5)
Contributions by employees 05 43 48 40
Deficit payments 18 01 19 22
At 31 December 128 2 60 2 188 4 151 4
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The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date are as follows

Expected return

Farr value of assets

2009 2008 ESPS EEPS
COMPANY % % 2009 2009 2008
£m £Em £m
Gilts — fixed 46 39 13.7 - 306
- index hnked 45 38 14.5 - 145
Equtties B2 75 55.0 302 732
Property B7 65 2.8 17 37
Corporate bonds 59 56 36.4 219 263
Cash 07 32 5.8 6.4 31
128.2 60 2 1514
The history of expenence adjustments i1s as follows

ESPS EEPS Total Total

2009 2009 2009 2008

COMPANY £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligations (170 3) (86 86) {256 9) (159 7)
Fair value of scheme assets 128 2 60 2 188 4 1514
Deficit in the scheme (42 1) (26 4) {68 5) (83)
Experience adjustments on scheme habilities 14 - 14 41)
Percentage of scheme habiities 08% - 06% 2 6%
Experence adjustments on scheme assets 92 69 161 420
Percentage of scheme assets 72% 11 5% 86% 27 7%

The estimated amounts of contnbutions expected to be paid to the scheme during the current financial year 1s

£12 7m

In addition to the pensian provision recogrused, there 1s an additional amount of £54m (2008 £4 0m)
included within other habilities which relates to the unapproved pension scheme amounts
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The Group has entered into a vanety of financial instruments to mitigate its exposure to commodity price,
interest rate, foreign currency and credit rate nsk Financial instruments are disclosed gross as derivative

and other financial instruments, obligations under finance leases and interest-bearing habilites on the Group .

balance sheet Commodity dernvative contracts include contracis related to the purchase of power, coal, gas,
gas oll, fuel all and EU carbon emissions certificates

The Group's risk management objectives and policies are detailed below They can be split into two main
areas, compehtve rnisk and the nisks ansing as a result of the Group's use of financial instruments A
discussion of the financial instrument risks together with a surmmary of the Group’s approach to managing
those risks i1s as follows The accounting basis for dealing with these risks 1s discussed in the accounting
poiicy section below The accounting treatment for financial instruments entered into as a result of these
policies 1s detailed in note 2

The table below shows the carrying value of Group and Company financial instruments by category

GRCUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
(restated)
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3984 106 6 323 264
Dernvative instruments (note 30) 441 5 1,123 2 4415 1,117 3
Held to matunty investments 10 10 - 05
Loans and receivables 2,3239 23902 2,293 3 22974
Financial habilities
Derivative instruments {note 30) {7512). (1,234 3) (738 9) (1,225 6)
Borrowings and other habilities at amortised cost (7,565 3) (6,907 8) {3,793 9) (3,924 2)

Loans and receivables include trade and other receivables and finance lease receivables, less any provision
for impairment less cther debtors

Borrewings and other lhabihties at amortised cost inciude borrowings, other habiities excluding deferred
income and obhgations under finance leases

a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital through focusing on its net debt which compnises borrowings including
finance lease obligations and accrued interest, cash and cash equivaients (note 27) and derivative habilities
Given that the Group 15 a 100%-owned subsidiary, any changes in capital structure are generally achieved
via addiional borrowings from its ulumate parent company or other companies within the EDF S A group
The group also raises debt via external bond issuance such as the £950m of bonds 1ssued under the
medium term note programme n the year

The Group 1s not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements
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b) Margin risk management

Margin pnice nisk anses from the necessity to effectively forecast customer demand for gas, coal and
electricity, and to adequately procure the varous commodities at a price competiive enough to allow a
favourable tanff proposition for our customers Due to the vertically-integrated nature of the Group, the
electricity procured from the generation business provides a natural hedge for the electricity demand from
the retall business Any residual exposure io movements in the price of electricity, gas or coal 15 mitigated by
entering into contracts and hedging options on the forward markets Risk management 1s monitored through
sensitivity analysis and value at nisk limits per commodity and across commodity for the whole of EDF
Energy consistently with its Group risks mandate

At a Group and a Company level, margin nsk exposure 1s measured looking at sensitivity analysis Under
IAS 39, at the reporting date, if the purchase price of commodities had been 10% higher (10% being
management's estimate of a reasonable, possible change), and all other vanables remained constant, then
the Group's profit for the year would have been £34 Om higher (2008 £20 3m) and hedging reserves would
have been £184 1m higher {2008 £240 7m), as a result of the changes in trade valuation There have been
no changes in the methad of preparing the sensitivity analysis since 2008

c) Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings and deposits 1s managed principally
through the use of fixed rate debt instruments and swap agreements The Group's policy 1s to use
denvatives to reduce exposure to short-term interest rates and not for speculative purposes

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensiivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the
reporting date, assuming that the rate change took effect at the start of the reporting penod and remained in
place for the full period, and assuming the closing borrowing position was 1n place throughout the year The
only ¢change in the method of prepanng the sensitivity analysis since 2008 has been the extension of the
sensitivity to 100bps from 25bps with the comparatives updated accordingly

if the floating and indexed-linked interest rate had been 100 basis points higher at the reporting date, and on
the basis of the assumptions outlined above, then the Group's profit for the year would have been £23 7m
lower (2008 £26 9m) and £2 4m lower (2008 £2 5m) respectively

If the floating interest rate had been 100 basis points higher at the reporting date, and on the basis of the
assumptions outlined above, then the Company's profit for the year would have been £20 6m lower (2008
£21 2m)

Interest rate profile

The interest rate profile of interest-bearing loans and borrowings, subsequent to the effect of interest rate
swaps, was as follows

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
Floating rate borrowings 2,442 2 2,898 3 2,150 8 23140
Fixed rate borrowings 3,009 4 2,098 6 444 1 476 2
Total borrowings 5,451.6 4,996 9 2,594 9 2,790 2
Floating rate finance lease obligations 2943 3017 - -
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The weighted average interest rate for all borrowings and finance lease obligations, after interest rate swaps,
was as follows

GROUP COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
Weighted average fixed interest rate % 6.4% 6 6% 52% 52%
Weighted average floating interest rate % 18% 4 9% 1.6% 4 9%

At 31 December 2009, the Group had one Interest rate swap (2008 one) and three cross currency Interest
rate swaps (2008 three) The cross currency swaps entered into during 2008 were 1n relation to the three new
bonds that were 1ssued The far value of the interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2009 was a
habiity of £6 7m (2008 a lhabihty of £8 7m) The far value of the cross-currency interest rate swaps
outstanding at 31 December 2009 in both the Group and Company was an asset of £94 4m (2008 £199 7m)
If exchange rates moved by 10%, the value of the asset and hedging reserve would move by £2 3m (2008
£3 5m) The Company had no interest rate swaps in 2008 (2008 none)

d) Foreign currency risk management

The Group's present exposure to foreign currency nisk 16 imited to the currency exposure on the service of
interest and capital on US dollar and euro-denominated debt, and the purchase of energy and EU emissions
certificates The Group policy 15 to hedgeffix known currency exposures as they arise The US dollar and
Euro currency swap agreements fix the sterhing equivalent that will be required to service the interest and
capital repayments of foreign currency debt instruments These are accounted for as cash flow hedges The
Group enters into forward currency purchase contracts to fix the sterling price for future foreign currency
denominated transactions These were accounted for as fair value hedges, until 1 July 2008 and any new
contracts after this date have been accounted for as cash flow hedges to bring the treatment In line with that
of swap contracts There was a net gain on foreign currency hedging instruments in a farr value hedge of
£77 1m (2008 gain of £280 6m), offsetting a net loss on the hedged nsk of £73 4m (2008 loss of £270 4m)
There was a net gain of £90 4m (2008 gawmn of £225 O0m) on foreign currency forward contracts in a cash flow
hedge

At the balance sheet date, the following foreign currency contracts were outstanding

GROUP and COMPANY Average Fair value
exchange rate
2009 2008 2009 2008

rate rate £m £m

Fair value hedge
Buy US Dollars < 1year 1916 1931 597 2540
2-5 years 1884 1910 118 1231
Sell US Dollars < 1year 1768 1937 {34 5) (166 4)
2-5 years 1688 1908 (55) (769)
Buy Euros < 1year 1343 1376 874 2279
2-5 years 1288 1323 369 1855
Sell Euros < 1year 1312 1394 (6086) (154 6)
2-5 years 1257 1336 (26 8) (114 5)

Cash flow hedge
Buy US Dollars < 1year 1725 1806 45.9 820
2-5 years 1655 1813 13.0 1347
Buy Euros < lyear 1201 1220 14.8 165
2-5 years 1186 1231 219 64 0
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If the exchange rate had been 10% lower at the reporting date, there would have been no impact on the
Group or Company profit for the year because every foreign currency-denominated purchase 1s offset by a
forward foreign exchange contract which locks in the price, however the hedging reserve would have been
£97m higher (2008 £64 6m) There have been no changes in the method of preparing the sensitivity
analysis since 2008

e) Credit risk management

The Group's credit nsk 1s primarily attributable to its trade receivables and amounts recoverable under long
term contracts The credit nsk on hquid funds and denvative financial instruments 1s imited because the
counterparties are banks with huigh credit ratngs assigned by international credit-rating agencies For
commercial customers with poor credit ratings, the Group on occasion will receive secunty deposits which
can be used in the event of default by the customer

The Group has no sigmificant concentration of credit nisk, with exposure spread over a large number of
external counterparties and customers

Due to the nature of the Group’s trading with other EDF Group companies in Europe, there are large trading
balances with other Group companies, however these are not considered to be a risk because of parent
company financial support

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less a provision for any uncollectible
amounts Prowision 1s made when there I1s objective evidence that the Group may not be able to collect the
trade receivable Depending on the nature of the recewvable, the nsk associated with doubtful receivables 1s
assessed individually or by experience-based statistical methods This provision Increases as trade
receivable balances age and is calculatied based on the analysis of past collections Balances are written off
when recoverability 1s assessed as being remote The assessment considers the age of debt balances and
takes account of the credit-worthiness of some customers and considers whether they reman ongoing
customers Money recovered relating to balances previously written off i1s credited to the income statement
on recelpt

The maxamum credit nsk exposure 1S derived from the carrying value of financial assets in the financial
statements, i addition to the credit risk anising from the provision of support and guarantees as detailed in
the table below

GROUP
2009 2008
£m £m
Guarantee provided by subsidiary relating to performance of contractual 74 51
obligations
Guarantee provided by joint venture relating to tax obligations 03 05
Guarantee relating to tax obligations 30 12 4
COMPANY
2009 2008
£m £m
Guarantee relating to tax obligations 30 124
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Liquidity nisk 1s the risk that the Group 15 unable to meet its obligations as they fall due because 1t has
inadequate funding of 1s unable to quidate Its assets The Group manages liquidity nsk by preparing cash
flow forecasts and by ensuring it has sufficient funding to meet its forecast cash demands

The tables below detall the contracted matunty for all financial habihities, based on undiscounted contractual

cashflows
GROUP
At 31 December 2009
0-30 30-90 3-6 612 1-2yrs  2-5yrs >5yrs Total
days days months months
Obligations under
finance lease - (91) 91 (18 3) 367y (1113) (2287) (4132)
Borrowings {754 2) {105 8) (749) (4434) {1975) (2.0602) (4,123 7) (7,759.7)
Other habilities (1,459 3) (4323) (1428) (3273) (20 1) {4 B) (42 6) (2,428 9)
Derivative and other (1,014 1) (2374) (3361) (7434) (11307) (2780) - (3,739.7)
financial instruments
GROUP
At 31 December 2008
0-30 30-90 3-6 6-12 1-2yrs  2-3yrs >5yrs Total
days days months months
Obligations under
finance lease - (91) {91) (18 2) (365} (1108) (266 0) (449 5)
Borrowings (1,086 3) (542) (107 2) (748) (5806) {1,7615) (2,841 4) (6,505 8)
Other habilities (1,215 2) (263 1) (37) (94) (19} (22) (2 9) (1,498 4)
Derivative and other
financial instruments (1,634 2) (908 9) (8265) (1,2812) (29156} (3024) - (7,868 8)
COMPANY
At 31 December 2009
0-30 30-90 3-6 612 1-2yrs 2-5yrs >5yrs  Total
days days months months
Borrowings (730 3) - {(181)  (3651) (78) (1,342 7) - (2,464 0)
Other habilities {1,154 0) (312) {22y (1204) (93) (4 5) (36) (1,3252)
Denvative and other {1,014 1) (2374) (3361) (7434) (1,4307) (2780) - {3,738 7)
financial instruments
COMPANY
At 31 December 2008
0-30 30-90 3-6 6-12 1-2 yrs 2-5yrs >5yrs  Total
days days months months
Borrowings (793 2) (17) (497) (497) (446 4) (1,1756)  (3804)(2,896 7)
QOther habilities (946 5) (24 3) (35) (1173) (11) (086) - (1,093 3)
Denvative and other
financial instruments {1,634 2) (9089) (B265) (1.2812) (2,9156) (3024) - (7,868 8)

There have been no changes In the method of preparing the analysis since 2008
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g) Fair values of assets and liabilities
The farr values of financial assets and habiities are determined as follows

e The far value of financial assets and habilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active hiquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices

s The farr value of other financial assets and financial liabilities {excluding derivative instruments) are
determined Iin accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar
Instruments

+ The farr value of derivative instruments, are calculated using quoted prices Where such prices are
not available, use 1s made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the
duration of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derwatives

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to imitial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the far value 1s
observable

» Level 1 far value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or habilities,

s Level 2 farr value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (1e as prices) or indirectly
(1e denved from prices), and

+ Level 3 farr value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs}

Leve! 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
GROUP 2009
£m £m £m £m
Derivative financial instruments
Hedging instruments carried at fair value - 734 - 73.4
Hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge - (294 1) - {294.1)
Instruments designated at FVTPL - (89 0) - (89.0)
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted equities - - 18 18
Total - 309.7 18 3115
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
COMPANY 2009
£m £m £m £m
Derivative financial instruments
Hedging instruments carried at far value - 73.4 - 734
Hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge - (281 8) - {281 8)
Instruments designated at FVTPL - (89 0) - (89 0)
Total - 297 4 - 297 4
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Derivatives

Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves
derived from quoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts

Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based
on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates

Commadity purchase contracts are measured using quoted forward purchase rates and yield curves derived
from quoted interest rates matching matunties of the contracts

Except as detalled in the table below, the directors consider that the carrying amount of the financial assets
and financial habiities recorded in the financial statements approximates far value

GROUP Carrying Amount Fair value
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m

Financial habilities

Borrowings at amortised cost {7,565.3) (6,907 8) {7,524 1) (6,882 6)
COMPANY Carrying Amount Fair value

2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m

Financial liabilities

Borrowings at amortised cost (3,793 9} (3,924 2) (3,717 5) (3,938 2)
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Dunng the year group companies entered into the following transactions and had the following outstanding
balances at 31 December 2009 with related parties who are not members of the group

Interest
Sales Purchases Interest received Amounts Amounts
to from paid to from owed by owed to
GROUP related related related related related related
parties parties parties  parties parties parties
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Associates 2009 - (81 6) - - - -
2008 - (93 0) - - - -
Jont ventures 2009 25 (21 5) - 0.3 0.2 2.2
2008 119 (21 9) - 03 160 26
Transactions with other EDF 2009 24.3 {3,672.5) (127) - 33.5 (2,443 7)
SA group companies
2008 53 (1,797 2) (128 1) 2086 86 (3,023 4)
Finance lease commitments
with other EDF SA group
companies 2009 - - (19.8) - - {294 3)
2008 - - (21 4) - - (301 7)
Details of transactions with the pension scheme are disclosed in note 41
EDF Energy plc trades with other Group companies which are part of the EDF SA group
Sales Interest Interest Amounts Amounts
to Purchases paid to owed by owed by owed to
related from related related  related related related
COMPANY parties parties parties  parties parties parties
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Transactions with other
EDF SA group
companies
2009 243 (2,783.3) {55.4) 48.5 33.5 (2,189.8)
2008 53 (1,797 2) (128 1) 206 B6 (3,023 4)
Other EDF Energy plc
group companies
2009 4,596.4 (416 0) {31.8) 1.0 2167 3 {339 8)
2008 4,88926 (521 5) (66 8) 114 21493 (318 1)
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43. Related parties continued

Sales and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices Qutstanding balances at year
end are unsecured and settlement occurs In cash There have been no guarantees provided or received for
any related party receivables For the year end the company has not raised any provision for doubtful debts
relating to amounts owed by related parties (2008 - £nll) This assessment 1s undertaken each financial year
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market value in which the related party
operates

Loans from related parties

2009 2008

£m £m

Loans payable to other EDF subsidianes 7300 7900
Bonds payable to other EDF subsidiaries 1,421.0 1,524 0

Amounts repayable to EDF International SA, an intermediary holding company, carry interest of 0 512%
(2008 2 408%) per annum charged on the outstanding loan balances and are repayable within one month
(see note 43)

The Group and Company enter into denvative contracts at normal market prices with another EDF SA group
company The total value of outstanding contracts reflected at farr value in the Group and Company balance
sheet was £2,813 7m {2008 £3,446 1m)

Transactions with key management personnel

GROUP and COMPANY 2009 2008
£m £m
Short-term benefits 42 36
Post-employment benefits 02 02
44 38

Key management personnel comprise members of the Board and the Executive Committee, a total of seven
individuals at 31 December 2009 (2008 seven) The Executive Committee 1s a cross-business unit
committee of senior staff who take part in the decision-making for the Group

44 Parent undertaking and controlling party

EDF Energy Group Holdings plc holds a 100% interest in EDF Energy pic and 1s the immediate parent
company

At 31 December 2009, Electncité de France S A a company incorporated in France, 1s the Company’s
ultimate parent company and controlling party This 1s the largest and smallest group for which consolidated
accounts are prepared Copies of that company's consolidated accounts may be obtained from Electncité de
France, 22-30 Avenue de Wagram, 75382, Pans, Cedex 08, France
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